INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.
(formerly named as CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd.)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CM Energy Tech
Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to “the Group”) set out on pages 171 to 285, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“the HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRETTSEH®

Valuation of property, plant and equipment in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments business and right-of-use
assets in relation to the leased diving support construction vessels
FRAREEATFARBERZYE BERIREURFAHEHNBE K SHZEAEEENGE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(k)(i).

BRI E B FIREZM G 11 R 2(k) ()89 & FHECE °
The Key Audit Matter
BRETEIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETFOMEEZEE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments
business and right-of-use assets in relation to the leased vessels
were allocated to the cash-generating units (“CGUs") to which
they belong.

RZZEZ=F+-RA=+—0 BFHREEFTEREED
2 BERREAREAHEEMM 2 CRREEENKRE
EBERSREmENReELEM(REEELEN]) -

When it is determined that indicators of impairment of a CGU
exist, management assesses the value in use of the CGU by
preparing a discounted cash flow forecast and that value in use
is compared with the carrying value of the CGU to determine if
any impairment is required.
EETRA-BReELABNFEREDTR  EEESRENTE
WM - KM EZREEFEGVNEREE  ARH
ZREEFBEVOREEETAEL  UNETEERHEEELE
Al (& °

Assessing the value in use of a CGU is complex and requires
management to make a number of judgemental assumptions,
particularly relating to the revenue growth rates and future
gross margins.
AEE-—ReELEMNEREEREEK BEFTE2EEE
TLEREH WA RF CEH AR RN EEKF) RARKRERNE
e Z IR A BT RER -
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of property, plant
and equipment in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments
business and right-of-use assets in relation to the leased diving
support construction vessels included the following:

BT AR EEN TAREBERZDE - BB RREBN
REBEEHME KR SR ZERAREENGMENETER
BIETIIRIE

° Understand the key controls in respect of the impairment
assessment process of property, plant and equipment and
right of use assets;

e THMEBYX - BEIR
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e  Evaluate the management’s identification of impairment
indicators of each CGU, with reference to the internal
sources and external sources of information;

o RBEANBRINIEMR THEREHERSES
BAORIBEZR R

e If any such indication exist, understand the management
methodology and basis applied in calculating the
recoverable amounts for the respective CGUs;
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° Evaluate the management prepared recoverable amount
calculations of the relevant CGUs by 1) checking the
mathematical accuracy of the impairment models; and
2) assessing key assumptions applied in value in use
calculations for those CGUs where their recoverable
amounts are determined and evaluating the methodology
and assumptions adopted; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRETTSEH®

Valuation of property, plant and equipment in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments business and right-of-use
assets in relation to the leased diving support construction vessels (Continued)

FRAREEATARBERZYE  BRERZREURFAHEHNBE KX SHZEAEEENHEGE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(k)ii).

FRRFE B FEIRFMTE 11 Rt 2(k) (1) 8 & 5HECR

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BERETEIE BRMNEFWAEEZEE

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment e  Involve our internal valuation experts to review and assess
in relation to manufacturing of rigs equipments business and whether the valuation models used by management were
right-of-use assets in relation to the leased diving support appropriate and whether the key assumptions used in the
construction vessels as a key audit matter because determining valuation models were reasonable.

the level of impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of o  EERMOABEEEREE LT HEIEEFRANGE
management judgement in forecasting future cash flows and BEEREEARGEREMANERRESSARE -

estimating the value in use of these assets both of which are
inherently uncertain and may be subject to management bias.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRETTSEH®

Loss allowance for trade debtors and bills receivables

B RUWERREERRENGRESE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(k)(i).

BT E P AN 20 R 2() (B & 5T R °
The Key Audit Matter
BREEHR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRENEHNAEEZEE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of the Group’s
trade debtors and bills receivables was approximately
US$65,837,000 after deduction of loss allowance of
UsS$60,183,000.

RZBZ=F+-A=+—H0 ' KHNREERE#G60,183,000
Enk BEENBEZEKERREKREZEREENS
65,837,000% 7T °

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade debtors and bills
receivables.
EREEREBNBREENESRE T EAERHEES
B AEnMEESRKEFRERERREAZHENAEES
B

To measure the ECL, trade debtors and bills receivables have
been assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
or credit-impaired, or collectively using a provision matrix for
debtors which shared credit risk characteristics. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information and involves a significant degree of
judgement.

RETEEHEEERE  REAFEREHRIGEERENHEBLA
BENEEIRBERRENERIENEEHERAGEERR
FEHEBA  RRBEERLR G o et EEXTDIRE
ERATRIBAMEREHRNELBRENERTE - WRERIE
MERETAE - B REAHE -
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance for trade
debtors and bills receivables included the following:

B EEZRBER N EEEENEERENETRETE
EER IR

e Understand key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade debtors and bills
receivables;

o  THREEENMLEESBKERKEREEEEES
BB gEEl ;

° Challenge management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade debtors and
bills receivables as at 31 December 2023, including their
identification of significant balances and credit impaired
receivables and, the reasonableness of management'’s
grouping of the remaining debtors into different
categories in the provision matrix, and the basis of
estimated loss rates applied in each individually significant
balance, credit-impaired balance and each category in the
collective assessment (with reference to default rates and
forward-looking information);
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRETTSEH®

Loss allowance for trade debtors and bills receivables (Continued)
BESRWERRREBERZRENBRERE)
Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(k)(i).

FRREGE I FIRER M i 200 K FT e 2(k)() & 51 BOR

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BERETEIE BANETTNAREZEE

We identified the loss allowance for trade debtors and bills e  Test the integrity of information used by management
receivables as a key audit matter because the assessment of to develop the provision matrix, including trade debtors
loss allowance is inherently subjective and requires significant and bills receivables ageing analysis as at 31 December
management judgement, which increases the risk of error or 2023, on a sample basis, by comparing individual items
potential management bias. in the analysis with the relevant sales invoices, bills and
BRI EBEREEAE LA EEHE  YHFEEEEEELY other supporting documents; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
BRETTSEH®

Assessing the net realisable value of inventories

FHEFEEN TR R FE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2(1).

BRRI G E BRI M T 19K 2() 5B ©
The Key Audit Matter
BERETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRENEHNAEEZEE

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value for inventories
was approximately US$39,950,000, which represented
approximately 12% of the Group’s total assets. The inventories
held at the year-end covered a wide range of capital equipment
and spare parts and the demand for these in the future may be
adversely affected by many factors including market demand,
competitor activities, pricing and the introduction of substituting
products and technologies.
RZBZ_=F+A=+—H HFENERHEAHR
39,950,000k 7T - HER BEEBHAEENNI2% - FREF
BNFERESRERNRBREN  RRZERERELD
FRARRINFLZARNIATE  BREMEHER  HFY
FRYES - B R E B R -

The Group's inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Determination of net realisable value involves
key judgements and estimates made by management.
BEEENGFERKAETSZRFEFHREEAR - EEA
IR HES R E IR E(E LA RS HI T R (5T

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
inventories as a key audit matter because of the significance
of inventories to the consolidated financial statements and the
significant judgements made by management in assessing net
realisable value, which increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.
HMBEEIERFENGHEREABRELFFE  REA
FEHGREVMBERENEZHREEEN G SR FEED
BB R HIET - WG ARSI E B IR E R A A E R
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Our audit procedures to assess the net realisable value of
inventories included the following:

B EFENT 2R ENETRFEETIIRE

e Understand key controls and evaluating the basis of how
slow-moving or obsolete inventories are identified by the
management and their assessment of the net realisable
value of inventories;

o THRBIBEEEGIHE M AT E IR B A B AR S R E
B EER H 1 E A SR FER R

e  Test the accuracy of the inventory ageing, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis with
underlying documents, including purchase invoices and
goods receipt notes; and

o  FHBBHMPTHE IR EMEAXG(BERBERRIK
BE)ETHER - MEOARAFERROERNT : &

e  Test the net realisable values of the inventories by
reference to current and subsequent selling price and
assess whether allowance is properly provided for if
required.

o ZEFZFRHEEMNEBAHNTFENAZRFME LR Y
BT S ZAHERME



OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed
unmodified opinion on those statements on 24 March 2023.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Wang Kei.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Wang Kei

Practising Certificate Number: P07788

Hong Kong
22 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
IIV_\éﬁéﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 = F = =F+=-A=+—HIF FE(KZETE3)

2023 20727
—=== —E-C
NOTES Us$'000 Us$'000
B aE FEx FET
Revenue A 4 181,337 113,040
Cost of sales SHE KA (140,340) (85,294)
Gross profit EF 40,997 27,746
Other income, gains and losses, net EAblg A - e R EEFEE 5 4,207 3,618
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAZ (2,496) (2,693)
General and administrative expenses —REITBAY (25,454) (21,934)
Other expenses EH bR (822) (2,571)
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FEHIEEEIBERE N~
loss model, net of reversal CREEE) kR EE 31(b) (2,274) 3,152
Profit from operations KRR 14,158 7,318
Finance costs B SRR AN 6(a) (123) (161)
Share of results of associates DR E DR ER (78) (47)
Share of results of a joint venture DMEEEARIELE (2) 19,345
Profit before taxation BREL AR 6 13,955 26,455
Income tax expense Frisfif >~ 7(a) (4,346) (565)
Profit for the year FRIER 9,609 25,890
Attributable to: BN % 75 FE4h -
— Owners of the Company A N/NEIEZZ= DN 9,502 25,879
= Non-controlling interests - PR 107 11
Profit for the year FREF 9,609 25,890
Earnings per share BREF 10
- Basic and diluted - EAREE US0.30 cent US0.82 cent
0.3031L 0.823

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HERaREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in United States dollars) B2 —F = =4#F+ = H=+—HI FE(AXETE)

2023 2022
—Eg-= et =Sl
US$'000 Us$'000
FErx FEx
Profit for the year FERRF 9,609 25,890
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREMEEEFX) :
for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEH/HEER AR -
profit or loss:
— Fair value gain (loss) on investments in equity ~ — XA FBEFAHE 2 mEUES
instruments at fair value through other (ERAFEEGSAEMER
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") Wa ) ez T AR ER
NFEWRE (EE) 837 (64)
— Share of other comprehensive income of - EiEEE AR EMEmEE
joint venture 325 2,358
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to PR EEN O EEER AR ¢
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences arising on translation - MERINETSFTES 2
of foreign operations N ZERR (1,559) (7,736)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEZMEBX (397) (5,442)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEKEEE 9,212 20,448
Attributable to: BT & 75 B
— Owners of the Company R NCIEZS DN 9,113 20,458
- Non-controlling interests - R R 929 (10)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWZLE 9,212 20,448
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEe BRI R

At 31 December 2023 (Expressed in United States dollars) R = F = =F+=H=+—H(XZETLZ%)

2023 20727
—=== —E—=

NOTES Us$'000 Us$'000
ih=s FEx FET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LIE S 11 53,237 20,904
Investment properties B 11 1,316 1,552
Goodwill EES 12 389 =
Intangible assets EBEE 13 1,743 1,139
Interests in associates RESE N T Z R 16 16,497 6,810
Interest in a joint venture SRNG5S 17 - 4,166
Other financial assets HEMemEE 18 5,422 281
Prepayments SEENEN 20 888 182
Lease receivables & R UGK 21 100 2,183
Deferred tax assets RETRIEE E 26 1,854 1,579
81,446 38,796

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 39,950 36,240
Trade and other receivables B 5 e % H A R U IR 20 110,457 164,704
Lease receivables G- UGN 21 15,479 12,800
Tax recoverable AU Bl IE 146 148
Pledged bank deposits DIIREITIERK 22(a) 5,457 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESZED 22(b) 73,366 24,915
244,855 239,878
Current liabilities FEBAEE

Trade and other payables B SR R E A E FRIA 23 60,185 59,576
Contract liabilities SREE 24 34,165 29,822
Lease liabilities HEARE 25 29,707 14,657
Tax payable &R A I8 4,284 4,061
128,341 108,116
Net current assets REBEEFE 116,514 131,762
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERSE 197,960 170,558

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HE&E 25 22,136 1,532
Net assets HEFE 175,824 169,026

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA

173



174

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBI E

At 31 December 2023 (Expressed in United States dollars) R —F = =+ = H=+—H(XETLZ%)

2023 2022
—E-=F et =Sl
NOTES US$'000 US$'000
B =E FERT FET
Capital and reserves EARR#E

Share capital [N 30(b) 41,418 41,418
Reserves G 30(0) 133,623 127,749

Total equity attributable to owners AR HEEABLERERE
of the Company 175,041 169,167
Non-controlling interests IR E 783 (141)
Total equity A 175,824 169,026

The consolidated financial statements on pages 171 to 285 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March

2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Zhan Huafen
EER
Director

EZE
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Mei Xianzhi

wEE
Director

EBEZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in United States dollars) 82 = F = =F+=-A=+—HIF FE(KZETE3)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERARE
Shares
held for Safety  Fair value
share award Statutory fund  reserve Non-
Share  Share  Merger  Exchange scheme  Capital Revaluation  Reserve  surplus (non- Accumulated controling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve reserve  reseve  reseve  funds  reserve  recydling) losses Total  inferests equity
BERD Refk  NTEE
RRitH HERE  GBMR B #ER
Bt ROEE AGEE EXRE  ROEE EXEE  ERRE 08¢ BoEE o mER & 0 BE g8
US§'000  US§'000  USE'000  US§000 USF000  USS000  USS000  US$000  US§'000 LS00 USF000  USS'000  USS'000  US$'000
Hr T A T T T A T TR T T TR T
At January 2022 H-gzZf
-B-A Hag 25463 2161 (10,560) (3631) 548 627 1037 - (10508 (141,149) 148,709 (131) 148578
Proft for the year Eigh - - S : = = = = = = B9 R 1 580
Other comprehensive Eh2E (AR e
(expense) income - b . (1715) - - = - . 209 B (b421) o) (4
Totel compreensive 2EERhasE
(expense) income - - b (1715) - . . - - 209 B9 20458 1) 20448
Transferred to eserve funds SRCRENGS : = = = = = = 109 = = (109) = = =
At31 December 2022 H-gzZf
tzR=1-A Hag 25463 2161 (18275) (3631) 548 627 10346 - (8214 (115379 169,167 (141) 169,026
Proft for the year ERgH - - - - - - - - 950 95 07 9609
Other comprehensie Eb2ARR M
(expense) income - - (15) - - - - 1,162 - (389) ® (397)
Totd comprehensiie AR MaLE
(expense) income - - (15%) - - - - 1,162 9,502 9113 9 9212
Capita contribution fiom —EHBRR kR
non-controling sharefolders ke
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 825 825
Establishment forsaety und RuZ2EERAGE
surplus reserve - - - - - 813 - - 813 - 813
Dividends recogrised as BARAE RS
dstributions (note 30(d) (F£300) - () - - - - - - E117) - )
Transfer ofresere upon disposal of R-HAERAMNE
investments by ajoit venture REKERGR - - - - - - - - 3508 (3508) -
Transferred to eserve funds SRREENGE - - - - - 1615 - - (1619) -
At31 December 2023 H-§zzf
tzR=1-A 48 250580 2161 (19,826) (3.631) 548 627 11,961 813 (3544) (111,000 175,041 8 17584
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in United States dollars) B2 —F = =4#F+ = H=+—HI FE(AXETE)

2023 2022
—E=-= T F
NOTES Us$'000 Us$'000
ih=s FEx FET
Operating activities mExER
Profit before taxation R 50 B g A 13,955 26,455
Adjustment for: AT RIEREL R
Depreciation e 6(c) 16,180 3,765
Impairment losses under expected credit ~ FBEEEEEERNIE T ZRE
loss model, net of reversal 518 (FOBR B [E) 6(c) 2,274 (3,152)
Share of results of associates DR E N R EE 78 47
Share of results of a joint venture SME—EEERRES 2 (19,345)
Write down of inventories FEHR 6(c) 576 1,605
Amortisation of intangible assets B 6() 147 56
Finance costs B AE A AR 6(a) 2,568 684
Interest income FEUA 4(a)(i) & 5 (2,889) (2,816)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment (U z=) B8 6(c) (10) 130
Gain on sub-leasing of land SEAREEENSH
drilling rigs classified as finance leases o b $8 H - & W as 4(a)(i) (858) (457)
Provision on safety fund REESRBE 813 =
(Gain) loss on termination of leases LIERER (W) BE 6(c) (62) 42
Net foreign exchange gain SNEE Uy 25 )5 58 - (1,490)
Operating profit before changes in BEESRBATEE BT
working capital 32,774 5,524
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,924) (6,890)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 W % H Ath R WU IR
receivables B> () 11,837 (41,123)
Decrease in lease receivables THE R FOR 26,148 22,486
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B S R E A ERFIE
payables ORIk il (11,880) 20,030
Increase in contract liabilities e ON=Ki g Yl 3,800 16,255
Cash generated from operations REEBELRS 59,755 16,282
Income tax paid BT ATISH (2,148) (203)
Interest received from sub-leasing of BoRRERENSH
land drilling rigs classified as finance Bee 10 38 H < & W A9 F1L2,
leases 4(a)(i) 302 294
Interest paid as sub-leasing of land drilling Lo ARERERN S HE
rigs classified as finance leases EHT A AEFE 6(a) (558) (494)
Interest paid as sub-leasing of vessels ROBLARMEHEER
classified as finance leases DEMMEZ AT E 6(a) (1,887) =
Net cash from operating activities KREERESCHES TR 55,464 15,879
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (Expressed in United States dollars) B2 —F = =4+ =-H=+—HI FE(AETZ5)

2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E- 4
NOTES US$'000 Us$'000
M5 FER F=r
Investing activities REXW
(Increase) decrease in pledged bank B MIRIT IR (B hn) i >
deposits (4,299) 710
Purchases of property, plant and equipment FEE Y% - #i/E K& E (1,021) (1,260)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEEEEMNK - (1,021)
Interest received EFLE 5 2,587 2,522
Repayment from a joint venture BENAER 17 44,360 =
Acquisition of additional interest in an W BB & A A 2 FEIME RS
associate 16(a) (352) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a WHE—HEK 2B SR
business Pt 27 (1,874) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ~ H&EWE - BE MR E
and equipment FR1S 3R 90 129
Capital contribution to associates A ERREE - (6,113)
Payment on behalf of its fellow subsidiaries X3 [ XM B 2 Rl 3 (5,972) =
Proceeds from disposal of an associate s — S QR TS RUR - 91
Net cash from (used in) REXBRELE(FTA)REFE
investing activities 33,519 (4,942)
Financing activities B K
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERE 2 EAHLD 22(c) (37,644) (18,660)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERS 2 FEHD 22(c) (93) (161)
Advance from a non-controlling interest of 28 & — & bff /& A 7] 3E1Z A%
a subsidiary 2R Y EAR 262 =
Payment of interest on consideration FERRERME 2R
payable 6(a) (30) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ — KB A A F1EAE#EZE 2
interest of a subsidiary EE 825 =
Dividend Paid EfIRE 30(d) (4,052) =
Net cash used in financing activities REXEBMARESFEE (40,732) (18,821)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and RERBEZEWIZMORL)
cash equivalents FE 48,251 (7,884)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZBERES
ZEY 24,915 33,511
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERSEBNY
changes 200 (712)
Cash and cash equivalents at RTZA=+—BZEER
31 December RE%EY 22(b) 73,366 24,915
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GENERAL INFORMATION

CM Energy Tech Co., Limited (formerly named as CMIC Ocean
En-Tech Holding Co., Ltd.) (the “"Company”) was incorporated
and registered as an exempted company in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s immediate holding company is Prime Force Investment
Corporation, which its shares is owned by China Merchants Industry
Holdings Co., Ltd (“CM Industry”), a company established in the
PRC.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are (i) design,
manufacturing, installation and commissioning of equipments
related to land and offshore drilling rigs and equipments related to
offshore wind power installation platform and rigs, and leasing of
self-owned land and offshore drilling rigs; (ii) provision of supply
chain and integration services in relation to oilfield expendables
and supplies; and (iii) provision of assets management, engineering
services and sub-leasing of land drilling rigs and diving support
construction vessels. The Company’s principal activity is investment
holding. The principal activities of subsidiaries which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group are set out in
note 15.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"). Subsidiaries of the Company have their functional
currencies other than HK$, mainly Renminbi (“RMB"), Singapore
dollars (“SGD"), United States dollars (“US$") and Pound Sterling
(“GBP"). In view of the Group operates in various foreign countries,
the directors of the Company consider United States dollars, being
an internationally well-recognised currency, can provide more
meaningful information to the Company’s investors and meet the
needs of the Group’s global customers. Therefore, the directors
choose United States dollars as the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A ISR MR

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

C))

(®)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Material accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for certain
investments in equity securities which are stated at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2(f).

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. Details of fair value measurement
are explained in the accounting policies set out below.

2. EXEHBERER

(o) BHIEH

FepBHmRIIBRELSHMAR(E
BEEAE)BEMZEBYBERE R
((HFEMHEREEMDMER - EFFE
BMERZGMBERABES LHRAREE
RANERGIFFERAEREE - NEBMTR
M2 BERGFTBRR TXHE -

BRI ASERMSEMIT BT BYB
BEEARBABWH RS E BT - ©
AEEANEST R EREMKA TRE
R MEE2(0RBEEBREANGERZSE
EAMEEZEAEFRRES 2EF
HEABRASBRAERBE S HREZ
EMBREMRREBHARR

(b) HBHREREE

BANH 28 2 @R MRE - &
P BRI A EERERE LKA
& EE TRAESFRE AR FETRER
BN o

BB s A — R BRI E o MRS 4R T
RENAFEEFE -

ATFEBENAEARERFRSGTHEE

EFRE S ERA B MOER - mT

wak BIRER A B R BRI A G E

Bffiflst « AFEBEAENFBER T XA
(S ETBOR TR -

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI T

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXRSHBEXER®
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs (c) BRI REBEITEEBUBHREER

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2023:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and February
2022 Amendments
to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and
examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help
entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The
application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions, but has
affected the disclosures of accounting policies.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs

2. EXREFTBERER®

(c) BRMIREETERBMBHREER

(Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 12 -
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
liabilities. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at that
date. For all other transactions, the amendments are applied
to those transactions that occur after the beginning of the
earliest period presented.

The amendments had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

(&)

EREREEREI25R (BRI 4)- BHE
—REEENEEREBERRNELER IR
O
EREERIFE 125 (BRTA) IR IB
BEMREERREE ZNRHERH R E
WE - EETHERNEYSERRES
HERRGMAHRERZR LIRS
Pl ErREEE - Bt BREAER
HERGEEZEREZRERELN IR
BE(EAR BHERPEN) RIELHE
BfE - BAIAERARME2&F LB
MR AREERERREENRS @ ME
MRAFAFERZBERRRE BN G
BRHAR - HRAMBEEMR S - BRI AR
AR 25 & FMEARRELENZER
5 e

ERIAL EHNEE 2 RAMBERREL
EX¥E-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Application of new and amendments to HKFRSs
(Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of
HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current
and the related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation

of Financial Statements
— Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that contains a
Repayment on Demand

Clause?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance
HKFRS 7 Arrangements?
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

L Effective for annual period beginning on or after a date to be

determined
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and financial position of the Group.
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2. EXREFBERER®

(c) BRAMIREETEBMBHREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation, business combination

2. EXEHBRER®

(d) BEEE - $BAHRAE

and goodwill

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it considers that it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

e the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

REEE
HEVBHRREBREARREBARR A
BN RIEHI BRI BREK

EAKENE AT G - BIERSER
B (HEREERNED  (IE2ERKE
HEMEBMAZETZ2RHNERKES
AT EFRAOER)  R(iNEREHREHR
MENFZEARE DR RERET

WARBRERETNREZEIRNAS
B AEREERAETAQRBEREE
DB T HERERIE T AR B
ARRINRBREERETHEEEN - AR
ARFHEARRARERETNREERD
RUABTHEENSZEHAAHEBEERE
no B

o ARFAFKERERNABBERNE
MREEFEAFEREENRE
ROBRE

. AATF REEHEEEASREM
ATHBHEEREE

o HMANRHELMEN:

« BEFHRES  RAXDALM
B 5 93 O S A R B e
NEEALMFERER 2k
BB SEA R 0IR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation, business combination

and goodwill (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
controls until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR I Rk M aE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXRSHBEXER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation, business combination (d) REEE  XBEOHRBE®)

and goodwill (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16 Leases) as if the acquired leases
were new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation, business combination

and goodwill (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests, unless as required by another
standards, are measured at acquisition-date fair value except
for non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXSHBEER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation, business combination

(d) GAEE . EBAHREE®

and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or
groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI T

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXRSHBEXER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Associates and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate and joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost of
the investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any direct
investment into the associate or joint venture that forms part
of the Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see note 2(k)(ii)). At each reporting date,
the Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment loss for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investee’'s other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR I Rk M aE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXRSHBEXER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Associates and joint venture (Continued) (e) BEARREGE QT (#E)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture
after applying the expected credit losses (“ECLs”) model to
such other long-term interests where applicable (see note 2(k)

()

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(f)).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

() Investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
are set out below.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or loss.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVTOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained profits/accumulated losses. It is not recycled through
profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance with
the policy set out in note 2(u)iii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(9) Investment properties

()

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for
a currently undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties, less their estimate residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and the estimated useful lives of 20 years. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 2(u)(ii).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)):

freehold land and buildings;

e interest in leasehold land and building where the Group
is the registered owner of the property interest;

e right-of-use assets arising from leases over free hold or
leasehold properties or leased vessels where the Group is
not the registered owner of the property interest; and

. items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets, arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 2(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

e  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 40 years
after the date of completion.

o Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired term of
lease.

e The Group's interests in buildings situated on leasehold
land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 40 years after the date of completion.

o Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease or 5 years.

e Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 -5 years
e Plant and machinery 3 - 20 years
e Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

M

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete the
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
2(w)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(k)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
2(k)(ii)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are
available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

o Computer software 2 — 10 years
e Technical knowledge 5-10 years
° Customers relationship 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (b FE5 G780 » X ZETTLFKT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXEHBEER®

INFORMATION (Continued)

(J) Leased assets
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

() Asalessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-
lease basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(J) Leased assets (Continued)

®

As a lessee (Continued)

The depreciation starts at the commencement date of
the lease and the right-of-use assets are depreciated over
the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset.

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets.
Any difference between the initial fair value and the
nominal value of the deposits is accounted for as
additional lease payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(J) Leased assets (Continued)
(ii) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note 2(u)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption described in
note 2(j)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract

assets and lease receivables
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the
following items:

. financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables);

. contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (see note 2(m)); and

° lease receivables.

Equity securities designated at FVTOCI (non-recycling) are
not subject to the ECL assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

e fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets; effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

° variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

. lease receivables; discount rate used in the
measurements of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

o 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and

o Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

e  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

e  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation on the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a low risk of
default, ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and
iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument
to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘low risk’
if the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXSHBEER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

k) EEBEREERE®

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract () 2RIA- - SHEERESERX
assets and lease receivables (Continued) EENEEFR®E)
Definition of default EYHES

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
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lagging default criterion is more appropriate. HEA - BlER -
Credit-impaired financial assets EERESHEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments, contract

assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assefts (Continued)

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Basis of calculation of inferest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(u)
(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

e significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

e  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

®

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract
assets and lease receivables (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

o investment properties;
. intangible assets; and

o investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in use
(if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXSHBEER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

k) EEBEREERE®

(i) RULBERLMEE

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

O

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such sale
or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(m) Contract assets and contract liabilities

Q)

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 2(u)) before being unconditionally entitled
to the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(k)(i) and are reclassified to
receivables when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 2(n)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
note 2(n)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component,
the contract balance includes interest accrued under the
effective interest method (see note 2(u)(iv)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 2(m)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
price. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. All receivables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less allowance for credit losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

2. EXEHBRER®

(M) ANEERANER

Q)

AR BA BRI A QP SR
AR EFTER R SR (R E2u) BERS
MEE - ANEERME2(k)()PTEER
SIEHEEEEMEN G - LEREZF
RABRGHERESH O BEERKHAR
BiEE2(n)) °

NEERRRBRER - AHVEEERF
SRR ERER (R E2() - A EE
5 G 1R R ) 7E 7N £ B e R A B MR 5 AT LR
BAR(E - AIGNEaETNSEER - €180
BN - A FE R U SR IE IR 2 2 R R (LB
2(n) °

HREEFRINE-—QOME » BRED
BEFERGHNEEFEZY - BE2MHE
HmE - THESHNANEERERNE
BETLARREZT

BT RERBEKRDF - G HEHRE
AR BB ESE R A F B (RHTEE2(u)
(iv)) °

B ZEW R H W RIE

FEWCRIE N A SR B A B G E R E L
EFEFRER o MR BARAER R
MHER - BIUERE 2 R A E AR o fi
W AR 55 (B4 7 4 A6 1R LKA (B A R
EHER - ZeBAUNEREHNEEZY(RW
FE2(m)) °

TEEERBEKD NE 5 EWFRIZE
RHERETVIFHE - BEERBEK
7 KB 5 & WA e EL A R M R IR IR A F
EBEENXZUAETILE - IARK
ARS8 AR BRI SRR # SR AR
BEEERESAR (R K200 °

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA

207



208

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

©

(P)

()

®

Interest-bearing borrowing

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for borrowing
costs (see note 2(w)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(k)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Refirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS Standards require or
permit the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payments

Share award scheme

The fair value of awarded shares granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in employee share-based compensation
reserve within equity. The fair value of awarded shares
is based on the closing price at the grant date. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the awarded shares,
the total estimated fair value of the awarded shares is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the awarded shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of awarded
shares that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as
an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number
of awarded shares that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares.

2. EXEHBRER®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Share-based payments (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

No expense is recognised for awarded shares that do
not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vested irrespective
of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Share held for share award scheme

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as “shares held for share award scheme reserve” and
deducted from total equity.

When the awarded shares are transferred to the
awardees upon vesting, the related weighted average
costs of the awarded shares vested are credited to
“shares held for share award scheme reserve” and the
related employment costs of the awarded shares vested
are debited to the employee share-based compensation
reserve. The difference between the related weighted
average cost and the related employment costs of the
awarded shares is transferred to accumulated losses.

Where the shares held for share award scheme are
revoked and the revoked shares are disposed of, the
related gain or loss from disposal of revoked shares is
transferred to accumulated losses and not recognised in
profit or loss.

Where cash or non-cash dividend distribution is declared
in respect of the shares held for share award scheme,
such cash dividend or fair value of the non-cash dividend
is transferred to accumulated losses with no gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(s) Taxation

2. EXEHBRER®

(s) BiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does not
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(s) Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax liability
for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly to equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (b FE5 G780 » X ZETTLFKT)
A Parasd ; M ==
2. EXETHERER®

(s) BE®

BIETRIBEE < REERREHRRA -
WIAT BRI EEH R AERTUE N B2 F
A H D BEEBERRIEFM -

EEHBREENABERFEEBEXNERE
EHARBRERANBRAE  FERER
BEMRDEMRERBEMAOT R (KB

EVERE °

EERBRBEREENERBIZBAS
BEMRHEMRATREREELEE
kB EREENSAFEMSLORE S
B

RREREANHEaENHEERSM
FARBYERREEREEREN R
HRERSERF125RAFHARE ° i
AJ BE7A R 2R B8 SR B M) AT AR R 8 R AR
EREERE  IAKEEREHEERENA
BHEE IR R E - YR PTA AT E i
HERERETEHAERIE

EHAAMITRMNA AT IA A & mE
IR B EEE - BRI R —
ERRERBUWZ SV AR - RIELR
REERAER BARHH o

BIEIRRE TR AN B s FE R MEM B R
fEERSERERNESEANEEEMR
BIBRON - FERZIER T - BVEA RORAE R IR IR
DRI EA 2 U sk B RN R R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

() Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

®

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling the
contract. The cost of fulfilling the contract includes both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract.

2. EXEHBRER®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

2. EXEHBRER®

INFORMATION (Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income
Revenue is recognised when control over a product or

service undertaking the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use
the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which
the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(i) Sale of equipments related to rigs and oilfield
expendables and supplies

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
control over the products which is generally the
point in time when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the products. If the products are
a partial fulfilment of a contract covering other
goods and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the
total transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods and services promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

Made-fo-order confracts

Revenue arising from made-to-order contracts are
recognised progressively over time if the Group's
performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has
the right to be paid for work done to date in case
of customer cancellation before the order was fully
completed. Progress is measured using output
method, i.e. direct measurements of the value of
the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services
promised under the contract.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customers obtains control over the
products, which generally is when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(ii) Rental income from leases

Assefs management and engineering service
fee income

Assets management and engineering service fee
income is recognised when the related services are
rendered.

Operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Finance leases

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group
recognises the minimum lease payments receivable
as a finance lease receivable. The difference
between (a) the aggregate of the minimum lease
payments and the unguaranteed residual value
and (b) their present value (presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
lease receivables) is recognised as unearned finance
income. Minimum lease payments are the payments
over the lease term that the lessee is or can be
required to make plus any residual value guaranteed
to the lessor by the lessee, or a party unrelated to
the lessor.

Unearned finance income is allocated to each
period during the lease term using the effective
interest method that allocates each rental between
finance income and repayment of capital in each
accounting period in such a way that finance
income is recognised as a constant periodic rate of
return (implicit effective interest rate) on the lessor’s
net investment in the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii)

iv)

M

Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 2(k)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXSHBEER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

(v) SMEBE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss in the “Other gains and losses”
line item as part of the net foreign exchange gains/(losses).

For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in
the fair value through other comprehensive income/revaluation
reserve.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of the foreign operations are translated into
United States dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into United
States dollars at the closing exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (5 B #89 » LUAZETHKT)
2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 2. EXEHBEER®
INFORMATION (continued)

(x) Fair value measurement (Continued) x) RV EEFEE

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics of
inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 = Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

3.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Note 31 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to fair value of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@)

(b)

Impairment losses on trade debtors and bills
receivables and lease receivables

Loss allowances for trade debtors and bills receivables and
lease receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which are estimated in accordance with the
Group'’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date. The estimation of ECLs requires the use of
judgement and estimates, where the expectation is different
from the original estimates, such difference will impact
carrying value of trade debtors and bills receivables and lease
receivables and impairment losses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Other impairment losses

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets may not be
recoverable, these assets may be considered impaired, and
an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of these
assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and the value in use. It is difficult
to estimate precisely fair value less costs of disposal because
guoted market prices for the Group’s assets (except for
investment properties) are not readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the assets
are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of revenue and
amount of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 3. EFtHERMT@
(Continued)
(c) Net realisable value of inventories

(©) BENTHREE

The Group recognises write-down on inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of the inventories. Write-
down is applied to the inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is less
than cost. The determination of net realisable value requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimates, such difference will
impact carrying value of the inventories and write-down on
inventories charged to profit or loss in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

(d) Control in a subsidiary

As set out in note 15, TSC MS Canada Ltd. (“TSC Canada”)
is a subsidiary of the Group even though the Group has only
a 45% ownership interests. TSC Canada is a private company
incorporated in Canada.

The directors of the Company assessed the Group’s control
over TSC Canada on the basis of its practical ability to direct
the relevant activities unilaterally. In making their judgement,
the directors of the Company consider the Group has
dominated the board of directors of TSC Canada by 100%
of voting rights, as the other substantial shareholders of TSC
Canada act in concert with the Group. After assessment, the
directors of the Company concluded that the Group has ability
to direct the relevant activities of TSC Canada and therefore
the Group has control over TSC Canada.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WARDEHHRE
(a) Revenue (a) A
(i) Disaggregation of revenue @ WA
Disaggregation of revenue by major products or service WAREBZERIRBE 29 HFI0
lines is as follows: T ¢

2023 2022

—E=-= ===

US$'000 US$'000

FErn FET

Revenue from customers within BANBREEAEI1SREER
the scope of HKFRS 15 REIREZF BB

Sales of equipment related to land and ~ $8% Pty & ) & HF & 4878
offshore drilling rigs and equipments KERELRERZETER

related to offshore wind power EHTAEERE

installation platform and rigs 99,337 58,924
Sales of oilfield expendables and supplies 5% i A& & ¥F A A8

and related installation services 2 HERTE 29,089 40,699
Assets management and engineering BEEBERIRERBERA

service fee income 18,889 10,564
Sub-total NEE 147,315 110,187
Revenue from other sources REEAARIRAUA

Rental income arising from leasing of DR E R E R REE R EF
land and offshore drilling rigs classified ~ #EHFEHEEENTHE

as operating leases PN 2,037 2,102
Rental income arising from sub-leasing of %348 & 4% & 70 & H) f A& 7K 2

driving support construction By HEEMESIA

vessels classified as operating leases 30,825 o
Gain on sub-leasing of land DI AMEREREEH T

drilling rigs classified as finance leases aomElA 858 457
Interest income from sub-leasing of 55 5 BB T B A FE S T

land drilling rigs classified as anHEMEWA

finance leases 302 294
Sub-total /NEt 34,022 2,853
Total =5 181,337 113,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 4. WARZE|E &

(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) () WADIFE)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers EEAAWBIRME TS 22 HFR
by geographic markets is disclosed in note 4(b)(iii). Mt sE4(b) i IR E ©
Information about major customers BEBETEEFEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding year RIBEFE » GAEERLWKA10%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group N EREFIAIT -
are as follows:
2023 2022
—EZ=F T
US$000 Us$'000
FER F=x
Customer A’ EEA 52,934 26,848
Customer B %FB N/A RE 2 14,491
Customer C =PC N/A T iE 2 11,796
1 Customer A is a subsidiary of CM Industry. g BEFARBREIEN—MHHERF
2 The revenue contributed by the aforesaid customers did 2 FRBFERMZ WAL RBBARE
not exceed 10% of the Group's revenue during the year BREBE-_T-_=F+=-A=1+—
ended 31 December 2023. HIEFEZHAZ10% °
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Revenue (Continued)
(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the

future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price related to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts is
approximately US$44,154,000 (2022: US$52,492,000).
This amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from pre-completion sales
contracts entered into by the customers with the Group.
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future
when or as the work is completed, which is expected to
occur within the next 12 to 24 months.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121(a) of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for sales of
capital equipment, oilfield expendables and supplies, such
that the above information does not include information
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under the
relevant contracts for sales that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.

The Group has also applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121(b) of HKFRS 15 to its provision of assets
management and engineering services as the Group
recognises revenue when the services are provided
that correspond directly with the value of performance
completed. Hence the above information does not
include the contracts related to provision of assets
management and engineering services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following three
reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

o Equipment
manufacturing and
packages:

e Supply chain and
integration services:

e Assets management and
engineering services:

Design, manufacturing,
installation and commissioning
of equipments related to land
and offshore drilling rigs and
equipments related to offshore
wind power installation
platform and rigs, and leasing
of self-owned land and offshore
drilling rigs

Provision of supply chain and
integration services in relation
to oilfield expendables and
supplies

Provision of assets
management, engineering
services and sub-leasing of land
drilling rigs and diving support
construction vessels
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (b FE5 G780 » X ZETTLFKT)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

®

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of goodwill,
interests in associates and a joint venture, other financial
assets, amounts due from controlling shareholder and
a joint venture, cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, tax balances and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
all payables, liabilities and provisions attributable to the
activities of the individual segment, with the exception
of tax balances and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit/loss
is “segment results” i.e. “adjusted earnings before
finance costs and taxes” of individual segment. To arrive
at segment results, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for finance costs and items not specifically
attributed to individual segment, such as share of results
of associates and joint venture and other head office or
corporate income and expenses.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment results, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment revenue), depreciation and amortisation,
impairment losses and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets used by the segments
in their operations. Inter-segment revenue is priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar
orders.
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MITEREE  REBBRUARRE
D RRE R - D AR A ZBIRTS
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

®

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LAZETLZT)

4. WARTDERHRE @
(b) D EB;E (@)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and

®

DWEE BERAERE)

REBE_T_=FK_FT__—F+
“RE=t-BLFENERARR
AEDBRAMARERSRITHR

assessment of segment performance for the years ended ERABRMEBAEBEZ®RD
31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out below. WEREHN T & -
Equipment manufacturing Supply chain and Assets management
and packages integration services engineering services Total
BENERAR HEERERIH EEEERIERE Eh
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECZE| CRCCF| CBIZH| CECCF| CBIZE| ZBCCF| CZBIZE| ZZICF
Us$'000 US§'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Uss'000 US$'000 Uss'000 Us§'000
Tin T3 Tin TEn Tin T3 Tin Txn
Revenue fromexternal ~ RESMIRE
customers WA 101,374 61,026 29,089 40,699 50,874 11,315 181,337 113,040
Inter-segment revenue ABERA 52,899 1,032 2,759 724 588 = 56,246 1,756
Reportable segment 2RFHUA
revenue 154,273 62,058 31,848 4423 51,462 11315 237,583 114,796
Reportable segment EEDEES
results 9,255 6,537 3317 4,965 3,181 756 15,753 12,258
Depreciation and EMITER
amortisation for the year By 2922 2821 397 520 12,390 4 15,709 3,765
Reportable segment 2RIHEE
assets 110,243 121,340 13,617 40,046 71,554 15,350 201,414 176,736
Additions to property, plant ~ ERFENE -
and equipment and BB Rk R
intangible assets during ElEE
the year 1497 1,618 151 1,010 48,484 3 50,132 2,631
Reportable segment 2RANEE
liabilities (72,148) (60,607) (3913) (25,013) (65,046) (16,698) (141,107) (102,318)
TECFFR  c EHERNERAGERAF
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

4. WARD®HERE#E

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) FEIREE)
(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (i) 2E/MIPWA - ¥8& - EEREE
results, assets and liabilities 2R
2023 2022
—EZ=H —F-—
UsS$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Revenue L ON
Reportable segment revenue WA EBUA 237,583 114,796
Elimination of inter-segment revenue ¥ $5 % 2B YA (56,246) (1,756)
Consolidated revenue (note 4(a)(i)) LR E WA (Bt sE4(a)i)) 181,337 113,040
Results E
Segment results DEPFER 15,753 12,258
Finance costs RS R AR (123) (161)
Share of results of associates DAGHEE D R EE (78) (47)
Share of results of a joint venture DIEEERRIEE () 19,345
Unallocated head office and corporate K% Bt 42 5% =6 Bz X2 /A Al
income and expenses A R sz (1,595) (4,940)
Consolidated profit before taxation B A% A 4R A Vg 13,955 26,455
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EWMNHBEE 201,414 176,736
Goodwill P 389 =
Interest in associates NN s 16,497 6,310
Interest in a joint venture INERVNCIPA o - 4,166
Other financial assets HEth&psE 5,422 281
Amount due from its JE Mo R AR BR SR IR
controlling shareholder 16,569 =
Amount due from a joint venture El—ME4&ERaFIE - 60,723
Pledged bank deposits BIEBIRITER 5,457 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents RERRSFEY 73,366 24,915
Deferred tax assets BEHIEEE 1,854 1,579
Tax recoverable AT e B IE 146 148
Unallocated head office and corporate RO ECAPEE M AR EE
assets 5,187 2,245
Consolidated total assets LAEEERE 326,301 278,674
Liabilities =0
Reportable segment liabilities EHHIAEE 141,107 102,318
Tax payable e I8 4,284 4,061
Unallocated head office and corporate KA AP EE M AR ARG
liabilities 5,086 3,269
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEEE 150,477 109,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)
(iii) Geographic information

4. WARD#HEE#E

(b) P HBEE (&)
Giii) HEER

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, goodwill,
intangible assets, interests in associates, interest in a
joint venture, other financial assets and non-current
portion of prepayments (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is based on the
location of the customers. The geographical location of
the specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties, the location of
the operation to which they are allocated , in the case
of goodwill and intangible assets, and the location of
operations, in the case of interests in associates and
a joint venture, other financial assets and non-current
portion of prepayments.

Revenue from external

TRINGEAROAKRERBINBE
Pz RNVAEENYE - BE
Nkt REWME BE - EBEE
E RE2ARNMAEQRANE
w HMEREERFANHIED 2
BNR(EEIRRBEE]) HHIEN
ENER - BEFNHMEUENETR
FMEMNEREE - BEFRBDEE
MEVENEENENNERE
BELME  BERRERREME
ME) - AR BCH & B R ER
(AEERBEVEEMS) RAEBI
HAERGNBERR LG ERR]
s  HttEMEERBMRZ
FERNEREE DM E)

Specific non-current

customers assets

RENBEFBA EBEFRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-= =EE==r |- =ER==4=
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET FEx SR

Hong Kong Special BHBEFFRIITHE

Administrative Region 36 2 606 1,663
Mainland China R A3t 116,921 79,067 34,546 27,607
North America b7 4,914 5,774 1,683 925
South America mE 17,738 20,637 432 280
Europe BOM 3,831 934 5,361 79
Singapore o0 13,195 923 36,864 313
Indonesia NEEfmE 2 102 - =
Middle East R 20,097 2,734 - 4,167
Others HAtb 4,603 2,867 - =
181,337 113,040 79,492 35,034
ST oCHEER - EHEERNERGERA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

5. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 5. HKRA - REREEFE
2023 2022
—E= - —
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx =T
Interest income MEWA 1,961 1,217
Finance income from lease receivables 0 & FE R B TS UL 626 1,305
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) bE 5 Wz (B 18) )5 58 74 (818)
Government grant (Note) R AT #28 Bh (Bt 3) 460 344
Rental income HERA 487 692
Others Hth 599 878
4,207 3,618
Note: In 2022, the Group successfully applied for funding support from iz RZZTZ=F  AKEBRINEEBRERT
the Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, B BT 52 S M 2 TE T B ARt 3 AT &
set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative FERFED - REBEMBAIER - AEBEER
Region. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required to employ BEHHEES A REBRENEEABEETRESH
a sufficient number of employees with reference to its proposed HEZEE -
employee headcounts in each subsidy month.
In 2023 and 2022, government grant also includes other subsidy RZZBZ=FRZZE=_F  BRHEDHTE
income received from the municipal and provincial governments in FE B P B A b Y A T BT AR B A A 4 B Uk
the Mainland China to incentivise the enterprises to improve their A BABED 1 5 U BT I R R SR B AR & P
technology and create more value to the industry in which the Group ERTTHAIEE ZEE -
operates.
There were no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to % B BN ER B A R A IR R S B A SR
these grants. =IH o
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6. BRELAIEA

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging (crediting):

BB ATE RS IR, GEA) THIRIA -

2023 2022
—EBC-=£ =E==%
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx =7
(a) Finance costs (a) BIBEHRA
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERS 2,538 684
Interest on consideration FERREEEZFE(HEE27)
payable (note 27) 30 i
2,568 684
Less: Interest on lease liabilities relating R FEASEE KA HY B A
to sub-leasing of leased land Pt i H T &
drilling rigs included in costs FHANHEEEEFR R
of sales (558) (523)
Interest on lease liabilities relating FT A SH 6 A AN A EL7E A A AR
to leased vessels included BEMEEEERNL
in costs of sales (1,887) -
123 161
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LAZETLZT)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

6. BREBANER (@)

2023 2022
—g== —EF -
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx ST
(b) Staff costs (included directors’ (b) EERX
emoluments (note 8))
Contribution to defined contribution M) € B4 FORRET BI/E H 89
retirement plans R 2,691 2,289
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IERHEMER 17,741 16,723
20,432 19,012
2023 2022
—g= —EFE-—
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx St
(c) Other items (c) Hbg H
Depreciation charge (note 11(a)) weEBAME11E)
e Investment properties o REWE 205 216
e Owned plant and s HAMER
equipment B 2,679 2,285
e Right-of-use assets o FRAEEE 13,296 1,264
16,180 3,765
Cost of inventories FERA
e Carrying amount of inventories s EEFENKREE
sold 124,981 83,166
e Write-down of inventories o TFEMUR 576 1,605
125,557 84,771
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH

(note 13) (BF=E13) 147 56
Impairment losses under expected BHEEEBERTH

credit loss model, net of reversal RE 18 (FBR#EE])

(note 31(b)) (PR EE31(b)) 2,274 (3,152)
Research and development costs HERFEER 5,776 4,966
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE RF

plant and equipment (M z=) & 18 (10) 130
(Gain) loss on termination of leases mIERE ) EE (62) 42
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN & 306 470

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
(d) Share of results of a joint venture

6. BREAENER (@)
(d) PEEEAREE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the joint venture
disposed two vessels at an aggregate consideration of
approximately US$190,000,000. As a result, share of gain on
disposal of these vessels of approximately US$18,062,000 was
included in share of profit of joint venture for the year ended

31 December 2022.

HE-_ZE-—_Ft+-A=1+—BItEE -
& &N A AR EA190,000,000% 7T H
EMEMM - Bt - BEZF=—=—F+=
A=+ BLEFEMNSHAEERRZE
FMPERSAhHEZSEMMZREL
18,062,000 T, °

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REBRBZRANFAEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (o) KEBBZRAMNBIEE -
or loss represents:
2023 2022
—2-= —T=_=
US$'000 Us$'000
FER F=rx
Current tax B EABE 1R
Provision for the year FREE
e The PRC enterprise income tax o HEIMPEFMSH 2,246 615
e Overseas corporation income tax o BIMEFTSH 2,826 439
5,072 1,054
(Over) under provision in respect WA FE (RERE) BET R
of prior years (298) 188
4,774 1,242
Deferred tax BB A
Origination of temporary difference EE AT 4 2R (5 26)
(note 26) (428) (677)
4,346 565
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REBRBRANAER =
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

(0) BABBERAWBIESE (@

or loss represents: (Continued)

During the year, the statutory tax rate in the PRC is 25% (2022:
25%) and certain PRC subsidiaries, were accredited as high-
tech enterprises are subject to tax at a reduced rate of 15%
(2022: 15%) under the relevant PRC tax rules and regulations.

The Group’s subsidiary operated in Mexico is subject to tax at
a rate of 30% (2022: 30%) under the relevant Mexico rules
and regulations.

Taxation for subsidiaries in other jurisdictions is charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in relevant
jurisdictions.

Withholding tax on chartering services income are charged at
10% by relevant countries under their local legislation.

Pillar Two Income Taxes

The Group has applied the temporary exception issued by
HKICPA in July 2023 from the accounting requirements for
deferred taxes in HKAS 12. Accordingly, the Group neither
recognises nor discloses information about deferred tax assets
and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

The Group is continuing to assess the impact of the Pillar Two
income taxes legislation on its future financial performance.

RER - ABEEERER25% (=T ==
F:25%)  mAETHBEMEBARERD
B e - BERA B RG]
RERBEEFARMEI5%(ZT ==
15%) &%t °

AEBERFT L EEN B R RIRIE
BRARETIEN MEREHEI0%(=ZF
T 30%)EFR o

REAMBNEAERAMME A BNHRRRER
AAERMNRITHEE VM ERFH -

ME RF WA Z TBINHL TS i AE R B R AR I
HEHERIZ10% 4R -

XEZREH
ARBCERAEAEMAGN _T_=
FLABRMOEB S ERF125ELTHR
HERENEEFIIMER - Bt - A&
[ 3 48 R o I B B ST A — TS A AR R Y
EEHBREERBBENER -

REBFFET A SEZPRSBOEBIEER
KB RBENTE -

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA

233



234

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

7.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REBRRRANMAEHR @

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and

(b) BIRMXERBEAR R ENE R

accounting profit at applicable tax rates FIE ¥ B8R
2023 2022
—g== —EF -
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FEr

Profit before taxation i 258 A1 g A 13,955 26,455
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRI A A B 2 & AR I8

calculated at the rates applicable to REAERE RLEREREF],

profits/losses in the jurisdictions BRERNTETE

concerned 3,279 2,228
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT R S O B 7 S 2 1,302 335
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEMERTIMA T 5o & (502) (521)
Additional tax deduction for research and A3 B sz 2 B 4N I F3

development expenses (1,334) (447)
Tax effect of profit/losses entitled to lower B & f& (K A0E R,/ BB HY

tax rate in the PRC Mg 2 (1,362) (1,075)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERAEAHIBEER

recognised W E 816 1,150
Tax effect of recognition/utilisation of TR /@jﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬂiﬁ?& Sk

previously unrecognised temporary ARG E

differences 770 (889)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax FRABTFERER E’Jﬂiﬁﬁﬁ

losses not recognised in prior years HEEHEBENREZE (726) (404)
Withholding tax on foreign sourced FORFGINZ WA 2 B

income 2,401 -
(Over) under provision in prior years BEFE(BEREEBETR (298) 188
Income tax expenses FriSFiIER 2 4,346 565
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of Directors) Regulation are

8. ExM=

REFERQ
MEERDROIF20RENESHEOT

AMRPIZE3IMIERARI(REES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LAZETLZT)

as follows:
Salaries, allowancesand  Retirement scheme
Directors' fees benefits in kind contributions Total
Ezhe £4 RERENAE Bl EER it
03 2022 03 i 03 022 plipk} 2022
Z§CcF | Bk | CECEE | BF | CECE | BF | DRDE | B
USS'000 | US§'000 | USS'000 | US$'000 | USS'000 | US§'000 | US$'000 | US§'000
Fn | TEn | FEm | FEn | tEr | TRn | TR | T
Executive directors: EGEES
M. Zhan Huafeng (3ppoint as no-executive director EERREN RS Ao TMARRARRNAES
on 24 March 2023, and re-designated as executive director -~ KR =F-=ENA-TABBEANAESRER A
and appointed a Chief Eecutive Officer on ARHAE)
29 August 2023) - ] - 1 = 9% .
M. Yu Zhilang (appointed as on-wvecutvedrectorand A ERE4(M=EZF+ZANRERRAEATEER
Chairman on 3 December 2022 and re-Gesignated as R UR-E-=F= A TRRBEARTESRE
executive director and appointed as Chief Erecutie Officer -~ ZERBRHAEUR-E-=E/\A=T1RE()
on 24 March 2023, and resigned on 29 August 2023) & - - - & -
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHES:
Wr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny RatrE 15 15 - - - = 15 15
. Zou Zhendong vt 15 15 - = - = 15 15
M. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024 REREEM-F-mE=A=TZARH) 15 H - - - = 15 15
Mr. Sun Dongchang (resigned on 23 November 2023) BRETE(H-Z 14 15 - = - = 14 15
Non-executive directors: FinES:
M. Tam Wing Tim (appainted on 29 August 2023) ERRTEM=E - - - - - -
. Zhang Xzheng (appointed on 23 November 2023) FRREE(H -5 ) - - z - ; .
M. Jiang Binghua (re-designated s non-erecutive director ~ BRERA(M=F==F=A= 1mR ﬁﬁﬁimﬂﬁ&
and resigned as Chief recutie Offcer on 24 March 2003, BABRHAE - URZZ M= A=+ ZREf)
and resigned on 22 March 2024) - 30 319 3 3 3n 0
. Zhang Menggui, Morgan (re-desinated as non-erecutive. - SEF A E(R-F-=F= A= TRAEF A HTES)
director on 24 March 2023) - = 30 316 3 3 313 319
. Wang Jianzhong Tk 15 15 - - - = 15 15
M. Fu Rui {esigned on 23 November 2023) BTN =ET-AT=RED) - . - - - 3 - &
M. Liv Jancheng iy ‘ - - - E -
W Huang lin resigned on 24 March 2023) FEREM-Z-ZEZA-tRAER) - - - - - -
Wr. Mei Xanzhi appointed as nonvecutve directoron 6~ SR E(R=FZZE R REZRRFATEERA
June 2022 and appointed a5 chaiman on 29 August 2023)  ~3- =)\ tNBEZTRZR) - - - - - -
M. Lou Dongyang (resigned on 9 December 2022) ERERE(N-T-—E1-ANARH) - - b - - -
I 5 m 635 1 b 19 116
TECFFR  c EHERNERAGERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

8.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain
directors of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments. For details, please refer to the “Director’s Service
Contracts” under the “Report of the Directors”.

No emoluments have been paid to directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

Ms. Zhang Zhen and Mr. Xue Jianzhong have been appointed as
an independent non-executive director with effect from 22 March
2024.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2022:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The

8.

EEME®
BE_T-_=ZF KT -_—_F+-_A=+—H
LFE  BEFEARREEREXRERET
e EEFE  FLMEEeRE/ETH
[BEERKEAL] -

HE_Z_=Ffr-_F-_—F+=-A=+—H
IHFEE  BERAARANZEEZNME - (EAR
SN AR E B N AR E B 18 H SR B SR AE AR
BfE -

REZLTNEEPACACERTABIYIENTT
EE CH_T_NE=A-+-HELER -

REFAL
AEBRUREHA LT  MiL(ZF=_—
M) REE - EMERHEsRE - X HE&%

aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2022: N ZEZZF ) RaFATHMESA
three) individuals are as follows: BEFIBAT
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—

US$'000 US$'000
FEx T=7z
Salaries and other emoluments e MEMME 672 725
Equity-settled share-based payment AR S A5 B AR D B R 2 3R - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B K 31 3
703 728

The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

il

Tt

Z=f(ZE-—F : Z)REFALTHMHS
MFATEE :

2023 2022
—E-=HF ==
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N | AH
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,0018 722,000,000/ 7T
(equivalent to US$192,001 to US$255,000) (& 7 192,0013E 7L E 255,000
=) 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t 22,500,000 7T
(equivalent to US$255,001 to US$319,000)  (#8E 7 255,0013<7cZ319,000
%7T) 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
employees as incentive on joining or as compensation for the loss of

office during both years.

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
US$9,502,000 (2022: US$25,879,000) and the weighted

9. REHFAL#E

RWEFEER  AEERERTS
e B X NS - (ERIAR R RS (E

RBERAE -

10. 3R 2

(a) BREFEF

EREARBFIZADRES AEEZEFL
9,502,000E (= &F = =4 : 25,879,000
E0) RFERE BT EREBAINEFHE

1=y — =}

B =1 T

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year FEAT -
calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HER N IEFIGE
2023 2022
—EBZ=HF —EF-_—
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—BRBEETEER 3,243,434 3,243,434
Effect of shares held for share award FHER D BN EIVAR D 2
scheme (including the effect of share (BIERE D RN ET S PT i
granted under share award scheme) fin K 2) (70,499) (70,499)
Weighted average number of ordinary RT+ZA=+T—HmHEER
shares at 31 December DIREFI5 28 3,172,935 3,172,935

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share equals to basic earnings per share
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 because
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding.

(b) ZREERF

ANER o

MO B RTEINEEE S SRR - &
B=E

— e s B
—RLEFENESREERNASENERE

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA

237



238

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M RRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

1. 9% BERRBEUARKRENE

(a) Movement (a) 8
Land and
buildings
held for Other Office Leased diving
own use properties  equipment, support
and leasehold leased for ~ furniture and Plant and Motor ~ construction Investment
improvements own use fitures ~ machinery vehicles vessels Subtotal  properties Total
BEEAZ HAERE
THREFR ERR  AHRER HAEK
EENR%H ELL $8  HRREE & 5534 it RENE it
US$'000 USS'000 Us§000 US$'000 Us§000 US$'000 Us§000 US$'000 US$'000
T i T Tin e Tin T i i
Cost: B
At 1 January 2022 R-F-—F-F-H 05983 4300 8184 3485 1,735 = 60297 4600 64,897
Bxchange adjustments EXSE (1929) (222) (148) (1,736) (119 = (4,150) (401) (4,351)
Addtions RE & 1,295 263 74 303 - 2,635 - 2,635
Disposalstemmination &/ (3 (51) (964) 859 {40g) - (3,010 - B010)
At 31 December 2022 and R-BZZEFZA=1-A
1 January 2023 R=5-=E--R 20437 480 133% 21,664 1514 - 55,772 419 5997
Exchange adjustments 35 (431) (] (16) (258) (29) - (174) ) (865)
Acquiston of a bushess note 27) WE-BEE (D) - - 2 57 - - 8 - 8
Additions e - 3% 103 4 9% 48,006 4943 - 4943
Disposalstermination HE /Bt (12 (2.585) (510) (2339) (85) - (5,530) - (5,530)
At 31 December 2023 W-%-=#+-f=1-H 19,99 2,589 1538 19,349 1498 48,006 98,974 4,108 103,082
Accumulated depreciation and BiTERAEER:
impairment osses:
At 1 January 2022 W-2--£-f-A 10,708 1583 19718 14439 1,568 = 36,236 2672 38908
Bxchange adjustments EXSE ) (80) (134 (955) ) = (2,208 (241) (2.49)
Charge forthe year Emid 8 1,188 75 1307 62 - 3549 216 3765
Wrtten back on disposaltemination ~ HEB&E/4 (189 (551) (959) (634 (376 2109 - (2709
At 31 December 2022 and RoBZZEF2R=1-A
1 January 2023 R=%5-=E-R-A 10,399 2,100 6,960 14247 1,162 - 34,868 2647 37515
Bichange adjustments Ejiig (326) (20 (15) (230) (1) - (608) (60) (668)
Charge for the year (note 6(c) £ i (3ke(o) 834 886 174 1635 108 12,33 15,975 25 16,180
Wiiten back on disposalfterminion ~~ HEB R /84, (1) (1633) (478) (2297) (18) - (4498) - (4498)
At31 December 2023 R-BZ=E+ZA=1-H 10,895 133 6,641 13,35 1175 12,33 15731 29 18529
Net book value RERE:
At 31 December 2023 RBZ=F+-f=1-H 9,09 1,256 897 59% n 35,668 53231 1316 54,553
At 31 December 2022 W-F--F+-f=1-H 10,038 2122 375 1417 35 . 20904 1,552 04%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value of investment properties

©

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
located in Mainland China is approximately US$3,850,000
(2022: US$4,276,000). The fair value is determined by an
independent valuer which has staff who hold recognised and
relevant professional qualification and have experience in
the location and category of the investment properties being
valued, using market approach by reference to the transaction
price per square metre of comparable properties. The fair value
measurement of these investment properties is categorised
into level 3.

Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

M. Y% - BERRKEBEUARKREWE®)

(b) BEWMEAFEERF
ANEBMRFEREHZREYENATF
BEA#)3,850,000E (=T =-—F :
4,276,00037T) A FEEBBI[GER
KREALBEMENTEATKRRSER
% ERATSEETE - ZGEMNETHE
BER REBANEEER - WEEME
BEREYWENE RERHELER - 25K’

BEMENATEEFEIRE=R -

(c) EREEE

ZHRBEERNERREENKRIFE

class of underlying asset is as follows: AL

2023 2022
—ZE=-= — T4
Note US$'000 Us$'000
Bt 5E FEx F=rx
Ownership interests in leasehold land AT E + it~ Fra g (i) 1,846 1,960

Leased diving support TR & BFEIK ST R
construction vessels (ii) 35,668 =
Other properties leased for own use ~ FERFIER A ZHMME (iii) 1,256 2,722
38,770 4,682

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND M. Y% BERKEUARBREWHX @)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (c) EREEE®E)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised REERANEERFA HIEE S THW
in profit or loss is as follows: T
2023 2022
—EB-=HF —F-—
US$'000 Us$'000
FERx FET
Depreciation/amortisation charge of RIAAEERRE D e A
right-of-use assets by class of BEMNFE BHER
underlying asset:
Ownership interests in leasehold land MRIBE iz A RERER 72 76
Leased diving support construction vessels — F & #0017 7K 5 f1 12,338 -
Other properties leased for own use HERRE A EMYE 886 1,188
13,296 1,264
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) HEAEF S (:E6@) 2,538 684
Note (i) Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings held B () REFEEABAEL BT A
for own use RERERS
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the subsidiaries of RZEBE-_=FkKR-_T-_—_F+—-A4
Group are the registered owners of one land located in =+—H ' AEERBARALR
Xian City and two lands located in Qingdao City, the PRC FRAZTAH—BIHERNRES
which the land use rights have been granted up to 2055, MHMET MO EZHEA @ ZF
2048 and 2058, respectively. Lump sum payments were T T HEREE D RIEREZ
made upfront to acquire these land interests from the THAF —TONFERZZREN
previous registered owners, and there are no ongoing F o BARBIEL — R KA &
payments to be made under the terms of the land leases. RIE A AREZE T iz
BERE+ B EGRREAFEN
e
Note (i)  Leased diving support construction vessels Eza(D) THE R ANE K T F
During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary BE-T-_=F+=-A=+—HL
of the Group has entered into lease agreements with FE - AEE—BHBRRELE
the subsidiaries of its controlling shareholder namely CM AR PR R AR T A9 M 8 R Bl RT 218
Industry, for leasing of two diving support construction E## - LB EH26,000%7TH
vessels at a charter rate of USD$26,000 each per day for HEHEMERTE RSN - A
three years. HI=4F o
Note (jii)  Other properties leased for own use MisEGi) HAERRERNEMY)E

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties
as its office premises and warehouses through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial period
of 2 to 10 years, none of the leases include variable lease
payments.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity

analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 22(d) and
25, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(d) Assets leased out under operating leases

O)

The Group leases out its investment properties and certain
equipment and vessels under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 3 months to 10 years, with
an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as follows:

M. Y% - BERRKEBEUARKREWE®)

(d) EERAEETHAZEE

AEBRBEEEE LRI NERE
FRBRAM - RERE—RNS HH3
BAZ10% - REE &I EEEE - T
BB FT A RIS T B R - B E e
SUBREN -

PR A4S B B 2 R BT B
mF :

2023 2022
—E-=HF —F-—

US$000 Us$'000

FERT FEx

Within 1 year 195K 15,509 549

After 1 year but within 2 years 1824 265 244

After 2 years but within 3 years 2E3F 239 244

After 3 years but within 4 years 3FE4AF 239 244

After 4 years but within 5 years 4E 55 239 244

After 5 years S5EFLAE - 244

16,491 1,769

Others (e) Hit

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended 31 REE-ZT_=F+-_A=+—HBILF
December 2023 amounted to approximately US$48,402,000, B FREEERE BK48,402,0003%

due to new leases of offices and vessels (2022: US$1,295,000
due to new leases of offices).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
early terminated the leases for offices and derecognised
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of approximately
US$952,000 (2022: US$42,000) and US$1,014,000 (2022:
Nil) respectively, resulting in a gain on termination of lease of
approximately US$62,000 (2022: loss on termination of leases
of approximately of US$42,000) being recognised in other
income, gains and losses, net.

T AFEABRAERMMAR(ZZE =
— 4 :1,295,0005 7 - AFMABRAEAT
) o

REBE=Z2—_ZE_=F+-_A=+—HL
FE AEERERLIEHRLAZRE -
DRHRIIEREAREERBERRED
952,000 T (= ZF = =4 : 42,0003 1)
}1,014,0005T(Z T = — 4 : ) - @AW
REABUA - U ss & B 1B F R RERR L
FAEUWR462,000E L (ZT-F + &8
IR EE184942,000 =7T) °

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

12. GOODWILL 12. &
2023 2022
—g== —EF -
US$'000 Us$'000
FER =T
Cost %N
At 1 January m—HA—H - =
Acquisition of a business (note 27) Wefg — 1B 275 (i 5E27) 389 -
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—8H 389 -
13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS . E\EEE
Technical Computer Customer
knowledge software relationship Total
BB
b1 B EH EFB% @t
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
T=r T= T= T=r
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2022 == =tE=H= = 1,399 = 1,399
Exchange adjustments BE 5 B > (122) = (122)
Addition NE 1,021 - = 1,021
At 31 December 2022 and _E::¢+ B=ar—E
1 January 2023 k=ZE=-=%—H—H 1,021 1,277 = 2,298
Acquisition of WHE—IRER
a business (note 27) (fi5E27) - - 763 763
Exchange adjustments BEE 5, SR - (70) V)] (77)
Disposal EE - (194) - (194)
At 31 December 2023 —Z_=5+-H=+—H 1,021 1,013 756 2,790
Accumulated amortisation ia‘l‘ﬁﬁﬁ&iﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ :
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—#—A—A - 1,204 - 1,204
Exchange adjustments BE - (101) = (101)
Charge for the year FAZH 9 47 = 56
At 31 December 2022 and _%3::¢+ B=Ea—E
1 January 2023 R-B-=5—A—FH 9 1,150 - 1,159
Exchange adjustments b R - (65) - (65)
Charge for the year FAZH 102 45 - 147
Written back on disposal &7 El - (194) - (194)
At 31 December 2023 R-ZZ_=%+_A=+—H 111 936 - 1,047
Net book value: BRI HE
At 31 December 2023 RZZE_=5+_H=+—H 910 77 756 1,743
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H 1,012 127 = 1,139

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

14. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is
allocated to individual CGUs (being a subsidiary, engaging in
supplying of industrial equipment and services to the drilling,
mining, heavy equipment and power generation industries
("Industrial Equipment Business”). The CGUs represent the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.

14. BERERH

HEEREARMNES  BEDYEZERNRS
EEENEMESEREHF Kk SRR HRE
BITERBIERBRES(TERBEEBD
RMEBAR) - RAKEARATEEMS - B
STEABUNBERYENREER

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
UsS$’000 Us$'000
FErx FEx
Industrial Equipment Business TEREERS 389 N/A 35 B
In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment, right- bR LR BN - BUBEREM S - EXRENR

of-use assets and intangible assets that generate cash flows together
with the related goodwill are also included in the respective CGU for
the purpose of impairment assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount
of this unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period, and
discount rate of 15.68%. Industrial Equipment Business’s cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2%
growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include sales
growth rates and gross profit margin, such estimation is based on
management’s expectations for the market development.

Based on the results of the above assessment evaluated by
independent professionally qualified valuers, the Group determines
that there is no impairment on goodwill as at 31 December 2023.
The recoverable amount is higher than its carrying amounts.
Management believed that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not result in impairment.

ENYE BEMERE ERAREERELE
EERAERETTARSREELEM

HEZZ-_=F+-A=+—HILFE %&
A RE e EEREEREBENEEE © &
B ERBEEEMEZRERFH 2 BKTE
BERARSRETER KAIEE1568% o THERK
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁgﬁéﬁ’ﬂfﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁz%mﬁfﬁi
REHE - SRBAETENEMEARRSZ Y R
BeRA/MEZ G5 - ERBEHEERE
REME  MZEARBEEEEMISERD
TREAVEH -

RIBBL XA BRGEMTEN Ld T E 4
R AKEEER-_ZT_=F+-_A=1+—H
MEEYERE - TROeERREREE -
EEERR  EUZEFREROEAAEREE
B TS EHURE

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

15. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

15. RITE A B 2=
TREFHHIEENEE SEXREAE

MKBARER - RBBIBESN - 5

BANRDERALBR -

By 488
o

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Group's
Name of company and operation registered capital effective interest Principal activity
NCEE MR R BETR Fr5E TEXK
REE R HEZMERNFE BRES
Indirect
f
2023 2022
—E-=fF Z—ZT_-__F
Emer International Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
REBRERAR 30 2,000,000 100% 100% REEK
TSC Qil and Gas Services PRC RMB 120,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Group Holdings Ltd. oilfield expendables and
("TSC (Qingdao)”)#* supplies
EERMRERREERRE F AR 100% 100% BEEREZHAREE K
BRAR(TSC(ES) D" 120,000,0007C
TSC-HHCT (Xian) Control PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading rig
Technologies Limited electrical control system
("TSC-HHCT")
TR HT (P 20) 72 B h AR#50,000,0007T 100% 100% SUEREEBRSERR
BB AR (ITSC-HHCT)
TSC Manufacturing and Supply USA US$28,529,900 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
LLC ("TSC M&S") oilfield expendables and
supplies and provision of rig
turnkey solutions
TSC Manufacturing and Supply, B 28,529,900% 1 100% 100% EESEHTARERAEREEK
LLC ([TSC M&S)) DM RRHEEREEN R
Qingdao TSC Offshore Equipment ~ PRC RMB42,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of rig equipment
Co., Ltd. (“TSCOE") and provision of rig turnkey
solutions
BEERREIORREBRLA P AR#42,500,0007T 100% 100% SUEREEEFTFARER
(ITSCOE)) R{EEREEFER
Zhengzhou TSC Offshore PRC RMB32,400,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of
Equipment Co., Ltd. rig equipment
("ZZOE")*
MR EFAMERERAR & AR#32,400,00075 100% 100% SHEREEEITLRE
(TzzoE))*
TSC Offshore China Limited PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
(“TSC China")t* oilfield expendables
L REH AR A% G AR%10,000,0007T 100% 100% EEEBFTFARBEIHARE

BRAE(TSC Chinal)#*

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023



15. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

15. RMfB A El 2= (&)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Group's
Name of company and operation registered capital effective interest Principal activity
NI MRS BR L 2RITR r5E TEXK
RS HEIMERNFE BERER
Indirect
%
2023 2022
—E-=fF Z—TE--F
NN Petroleum Engineering (HK) Hong Kong 16,450,000 79% 79%  Trading of oilfield expendables
Co., Limited (“NN Petroleum™) and supplies and provisions of
engineering services
HEORTREEE)BRAR B 16,450,000 & 1% 79% 79% EBEEAERERIHRE
(TFgmAHl) RETIRRH
TSC Offshore (UK) Limited United Kingdom 73,074,952 100% 100%  Investment holding
("TSCUK") shares of 0.025
GBP each
TSC Offshore (UK) Limited ®E 73,074,952% 100% 100% REEK
(FTscukl) BRRMEE0.025
EEERARL
TSC Canada (Note) Canada CAD2,000,000 45% N/A  Supplying of industrial
equipment and services to
the drilling, mining, heavy
equipment and power
generation industries
TSC Canada(ff ) mEX 2,000,000/07C 45% NER  mEH  RE BRRER
BETERBTERERRS
TSC Engineering Limited United Kingdom GBP1 100% 100%  Design and manufacturing
of mechanical handling
equipment,. trading of oilfield
expendables and supplies and
provision of engineering
services
TSC Engineering Limited figeil 154 100% 100%  ER&rREUEHMERRE -
BEEHREEERIEAR
12t TR R
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited Singapore 10,000 shares of 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
1 Singapore Dollar oilfield expendables
(SG$) each and supplies, provisions of
management and engineering
services and leases of vessels
TSC Offshore Pte. Limited H AR 10,000 B X & 100% 100% EEBEFTAREHARER
1% T MRAREHEE R
(Eiip b)) TERH
# A% 7

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA

245



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

15. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

15. RMfB A al 2= (&)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid-up Group's
Name of company and operation registered capital effective interest Principal activity
NRER HMREL B BRITR r5E TEER
RGE HEEMERNFE BRES
Indirect
%
2023 2022
—E-=fF Z—E--F
TSC Offshore Corporation USA US$6,100 100% 100%  Design, manufacturing and
trading of rig equipment and
sub-leasing of drilling rigs
TSC Offshore Corporation xEH 6,100% 7T 100% 100% &t REREBEEHATAHRE
UEABEHTE
TSC Industria Manufatureira, Brazil Brazil Real 100% 100%  Trading of oilfield expendables
Comercio e Servicos em 1,800,000 and supplies and provision of
Petroleo LTDA engineering services
TSC Industria Manufatureira, Bf 1,800,000 100% 100% EEHARERDHAR
Comercio e Servicos em ERAELR R TR RA
Petroleo LTDA
China Merchants TSC Offshore PRC RMB300,000,000 100% 100%  Research and development and
Tech Ltd.* sale of offshore wind power
related equipment, research
and development and sale of
offshore engineering
equipment
ERAREFRBRERAR" i AR #300,000,0007% 100% 100% & LESHEREETERHEE
rIRREMEREE
TSC Manufacturing and Mexico - 100% 100%  Trading of rig equipment and
Supply LLC oilfield expendables and
supplies and provision of rig
turnkey solutions
TSC Manufacturing and Ytk = 100% 100% EBEEEHTARERAEEER
Supply LLC M RIRHER AR
Note: According to the memorandum of association, the Group has the Mgk : MBABERKNH  NEBEEHEETSC

ability to appoint three out of three directors to the board of directors
of TSC Canada as the other substantial shareholders of TSC Canada
act in concert with the Group. This grants the Group the authority to
control TSC Canada. As a result, TSC Canada has been accounted for
as a subsidiary of the Group.

& Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises
x Unofficial English translation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. RBEE QT 2w

available:

Proportion of ownership

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx ST
Cost of interests in associates NN ool DN 16,397 6,622
Share of post-acquisition profit and other PG WIS 8 R T 2 E Ath 2 E e
comprehensive income 100 188
16,497 6,810
The following list contains the particulars of the associates, which TRI| LS ATRE BERIELMESE
are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not B WEERMISES :

interest
FRERRER LB
Form of Place of
business establishment Group's
Name of associate structure and business effective interest Principal activity
RIR XEE
BENRAR ABERES  ExnH BERER TEXH
Indirect
%
2023 2022
“EC-=E e
Guangzhou Interstellar Offshore Establishment PRC 25% 25%  Provision of professional
Engineering Co., Ltd. technical services
BMNER ST ITREEFER AR ’iE i 25% 25% REZERMRS
Jiangsu Modern Shipbuilding Technology ~ Establishment PRC 36% 25%  Provision of professional
Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Modern”) (Note a) (Note a) technical services on
shipbuilding solutions
THRAEMRTERAR KiE h 36% 5% REBHEMBATRNER
(DI&EZRRD) (Hizta) (Hizta) Al PR
CMIC Yiho Hydrogen Energy (Shenzhen)  Establishment ~ PRC 40% 40%  Manufacturing of equipment of
Co., Ltd. ("CMIC Yiho") (Note b) (Note b) hydrogen refueling station
E@faRag(RINROERRF e e 40% 40% BENTIERE
(MR AR (fizth) (H=Eb)
Shenzhen Intelligent Hydrogen Industry Establishment PRC N/A 20%  Operating and leasing hydrogen
Co., Ltd. (“SIHI") energy vehicles
AETEERRAA i HhE TR 20% SEEHELRE
TRIEaEZX])
China Merchant Xia Kah Green Hydrogen  Establishment PRC 42% 33%  Research and development of
Technology Co., Ltd ("CMXK") (Note c) (Note ¢) electrolysed water equipment
ERERTERIM(EM)BRAR i HhE 42% 33% HESHKRE
(EEER)) (fMaEd (Mke)

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

CM Energ

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an acquisition agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Group acquired additional 11% equity interest
of Jiangsu Modern at a consideration of approximately US$352,000.
The aforesaid acquisition transaction was completed in 2023, and the
Group's effective interest in Jiangsu Modern increased from 25% to
36%.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary of the Group
has entered into a capital injection agreement with CIMC Yiho which it
has agreed to make capital injection of approximately US$1,403,000.
The Group's interest in CIMC Yiho remain unchanged at 40%. The
contribution was unpaid and included under other payable as at 31
December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a subsidiary of the Group
has entered into a capital injection agreement with CMXK which
it agreed to make capital injection of approximately US$8,164,000
and the Group's interest in CMXK increased from 33% to 42%. The
contribution was unpaid and included under other payable as at 31
December 2023.

y Tech Co., Ltd. *+ Annual Report 2023

16. REEE DR 2 S ()

BieE s

(a)

(b)

BE-_ZE-_=F+-A=+—HItFEE K&
E-EB AR EBE =T U E i
B - ANEB AR E 49352,0003 T K T ER IR
RZEINMI1%RE - EMRBERIER=ZT=
=Fuk BEASEBERNIHRANERERSS
25%IEE36% °

BE-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—8H1FE &%
B BARE BEmERI L EEHE
Bt - EEREEE 1,403,000 T ° NEE
REFEROERSBERETE - B4A0% - R=T
—=&+-A=+—8  AELELAEMN -
FFAHMBMAZERT °

BE_E_=F+_A=+—HILtFEE K&
E—HNBAREBERER L FE HE
Bt - EEREEE#S,164,000% T - NEE
RIERE R H33%IEE42% - R-T =
=F+=-A=+—8 AELEDREMN - &
AHMBERZIEET o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

17. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements, are as follows:

17. REE QR 2R
B EREARBREFIRE 2 AEERA S
AT R EBWT

Proportion of
ownership interest

FrERRR LA
Place of Particulars
Form of business incorporation and issued and Group's
Name of joint venture structure business paid-up capital effective interest Principal activity
AL RELE T5£8
RENRER ERERES REFbH Bz BERER TEXH
Indirect
4
2023 2022
ZECZE |ZBZZE
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited Incorporated The British US$100,000,000 N/A 50%  Leasing and trading of
Virgin Islands (Note) jack-up drilling rigs
Wealthy Marvel Enterprises Limited(FitsE) ~ sEfBAkAL RERAHE 100,000,000% 7T TER 50% HREBALEATS
Note: Wealthy Marvel is a limited company incorporated in the BVI, and B Wealthy Marvel s — R RBREZEHE

the other joint venture partner is CM Industry. Wealthy Marvel
was dissolved by voluntary liquidation on 13 October 2023, and
the liquidation proceeds the Group entitled was approximately
US$65,233,000 which included repayment of amounts due from
Wealthy Marvel amounting to US$60,723,000 (note 20). During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received cash amounting to
approximately US$44,360,000 and listed equity securities amounting
to approximately US$4,304,000, and the remaining balance of
liquidation proceeds amounting to approximately US$16,569,000
was held by CM Industry and was included in amount due from its
controlling shareholder as at 31 December 2023 (as disclosed in note
20). The outstanding amount is expected to be repaid on or before 31
December 2024.

HERAYNBERAR  MB—E &%
HABEIE RZTE-=Ft+A+
= H » Wealthy MarvellA BFE/E & 7
N ASEEEESHNBERAME
FKIBH /65,233,000 7T © BIEEE
JEltWealthy Marvel3X1860,723,000
Ex(ffzF20) - BEZT==F+=
AR=+—RHIFE  AEEEKER
£ #4944,360,0003 7T & AN E 5
4,304,0003 7T * B LTS KIBREELY
16,569,000 THBAEA LEF AL R =
To=F+=-A=1+—Hat AR
BX R ERIE (M FE2038 &) - TR =T
—ME+=-— A=+ — B ZAEDZE
KIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

18.

19.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18. Hit e @& E
2023 2022
—Z=-= B —fF
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx F=7
Equity securities designated at FVTOCI EERERAFEEFAH
(non-recycling) ftt 2 T UK 2% Y IR AN 5% 35
(GE&IE)
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBLMHRAES 152 281
Equity securities listed in Norway N S L= ) N 5,270 -
5,422 281
The listed equity securities include (i) shares in JX Energy Limited ETRABEF BTG FIX Energy Limited (BIR
(i.e. listed in Mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong ERBMARZAAERAREREM KRG - Z
Limited), which is a company incorporated in Canada and engaged AEIRMERFME REERHRRARE
in petroleum and natural gas production; and (ii) shares in Shelf B J&(ii) FAShelf Drilling Limited (Bl B3 Hf fE 75
Drilling Limited (i.e. listed in Oslo Stock Exchange), a company ARG EMBRG - ZRARRERSHEE
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands and engaged M R FE /LM R RARFHER
in provision of equipment and services for the drilling, completion, TH - M SRR R R RS -
maintenance and decommissioning of oil and natural gas wells.
The Group designated these investments as financial asset at REEHZEREETH/IERAFEBET AR
FVTOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held for strategic ZHWE RMEEGFEE) REAZKE
purposes. No dividends were received on these investments during DRESRAEN BHE_T_=F+=-A=+
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). —HIEFE - BEXZFRERIEARE(Z
BOF )
INVENTORIES 19. &

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:

HAEMBHARARTHNFERR

2023 2022
—E=-= SER=—GE

US$°000 US$'000

FEx T

Raw materials R H 4,592 7,605
Work in progress fEEm 27,738 19,075
Finished goods EERK 7,620 9,560
39,950 36,240

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20. B 5 B R H 1 UK IE

2023 2022
—E-= I —
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx ST
Trade debtors and bills receivables (note a) & 5 FEU AR 31 & B W 245 (B 7k a) 126,020 138,262
Less: Loss allowance W IR (60,183) (57,448)
65,837 80,814
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ E IR « TN KigE
(note a) (PffEa) 22,967 23,349
Amount due from its controlling shareholder &Yz 4% A% A% 5 708 (B 5Eb)
(note b) 16,569 =
Prepaid on behalf of its fellow subsidiaries RERZME R RTEN (O
(note c) 5,972 -
Amount due from a joint venture (note d) FEI A & A R FA (M Ed) - 60,723
111,345 164,886
Less: Non-current portion of prepayments B TR 2 FEBNEREL 5 (888) (182)
110,457 164,704

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

As at 31 December 2023, trade debtors and bills receivables and
other deposits included approximately US$15,747,000 (2022:
US$21,128,000) due from, and rental deposits of approximately
US$62,000 (2022: US$34,000) paid to, subsidiaries of CM
Industry, in connection with the sales of products to and lease
arrangements with these related parties respectively.

Amount due from its controlling shareholder represent
outstanding liquidation proceeds of Wealthy Marvel received on
behalf by CM Industry and CM Industry has agreed to arrange
settlement to the Group on or before 31 December 2024 (note
17).

The amount represents repair and maintenance expense of
diving support construction vessels paid on behalf of its fellow
subsidiaries in which the vessels were leased from them (as
disclosed in note 11(c)) which will be repayable by the fellow
subsidiaries.

The amount as at 31 December 2022 was unsecured, interest-
free and recoverable on demand. The amount was settled by the
liquidation proceeds received from the joint venture in 2023 (note
17).

Mizka :

fizEb

MisEC :

GEE

R-ZTE_=F+=-A=1+—0 E5RNK
R REREEREIZSBIED B
MBI EMRBRARHEEERRKERT
VHEERHEmERZS@E T HFIELN
15,747,000F T (ZZF = =4 : 21,128,000
EL)RAZERB I X NOEERESLD
62,000 T (=2 = =4 : 34,000%7T) ©

FEWEERRRAIBREBEIER AR
E Y Wealthy Marvel ) R (BB /F LTS
B BRAI¥(ERER=-S-WNF+=
B=+—Bs®zaimAs B HEEE (K
F£17) °

ZHEERRAELEMANRRHEA
BT HY BN TE K ST F5 A O e % (B
2 (ANBT R 1(QFT B ER) %k RS Rk R A
M EARNEE.

R-ZE-—F+-A=1+—"HNEBRE
R 2B RAIREREFYRE o FZFRIEA
—E-ZFHAERERMAERAMER
RN (REE17)
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All of the trade debtors and bills receivables from contracts with
customers are within the scope of HKFRS 15.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, where trade debtors
is presented based on the transaction date, and bills receivables
is presented based on the bills issuance date at the end of the
reporting period:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

20. ES5 RN R EMMERRIE )

FA B SRR R B R BRB N & & 15 W
HEAF1SFEEANBKES S LHFR

RI|ERR - B REERRERFEFNRE
EBBRRE) ZREONOT(EP - EHRK
ERMERZENFINZZAHMARANE
51)) -

2023 2022
—E-=F —E_—
US$°000 US$'000
FEx F=E=T
Trade debtors and bills receivables B ZEWRFTIKEKZE
Within 1 month —(ERAR 26,703 41,080
More than 1 month but within 3 months @ — @A ER=EA RN 14,186 10,452
More than 3 months but within BB =EAER
12 months TZEAR 13,693 14,453
More than 12 months but within BRT—EAER
24 months T EA A 2,408 5,941
More than 24 months BB —tmEA 8,847 8,888
65,837 80,814

The credit terms offered by the Group to its customers differ with
each product/service. The credit terms offered to customers under
the business segment of supply chain and integration services, and
assets management and engineering services are normally 30 to
90 days. The credit terms offered to customers under the business
segment of equipment manufacturing and packages are negotiated
on a case-by-case basis. Deposits ranging from 0% to 30% of the
contract sum are usually required. The balance of 60% to 90%
would be payable in 1 to 2 months after delivery and acceptance of
products. The remaining 5% to 10% of the contract sum represents
the retention money and is generally payable within up to 18
months after delivery of the products or 1 year after completion of
the onsite testing, whichever is earlier.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

21. LEASE RECEIVABLES 21.

The Group leases out certain equipment under finance leases
expiring within 4 years. In addition, at the end of the lease term,
the underlying equipment will be transferred to the lessee. None of
these leases includes variable lease payments.

In addition, the Group also sub-leases two land drilling rigs under
finance leases in 2023 with minimum non-cancellable period of 3
months (2022: 3 months). None of these leases includes variable
lease payments.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group's lease receivables at the end of the reporting period:

HE WK
AEBAMFHREREHAETRE - 1t
5h REEEERE - HMREREET AR
A REREHTRETEREMK -

gAN s REER T - =F UK P3EA (=
FooF  3EA)TAREERBEHESH
MEEENTE  ZSHER TS #HE
BRI e

TRIRAEEEERB RN HRERAROBT
BRHIR

2023 2022
—EBEC-=F —F-—
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx SEESTE
Within 1 year 1R 15,755 13,502
After 1 year but within 2 years 1224F 105 2,337
After 2 years but within 3 years 2E3F - 94
Undiscounted lease payments RMBEHENR 15,860 15,933
Less: total future interest income B ARIRBFBHA (279) (925)
Present value of minimum leases EWREHAENRZEE

payments receivables 15,581 15,008
Less: loss allowance on lease receivables B HERBGRSERE (2) (25)
15,579 14,983

Less: non-current portion of lease o HERRRNERE B
receivables (100) (2,183)
Current portion of lease receivables HERBRWRE RS 15,479 12,800

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. RERBEEEY

(a) Pledged bank deposits
As at 31 December 2023, pledged bank deposits amounting
to approximately US$5,457,000 (2022: US$1,071,000) carry
interest rate ranging from 1.20% to 1.50% (2022: 0.25% to
2.50%) and represented deposits pledged to banks to secure
the Group’s certain bill payables. The pledged bank deposits
will be released upon the end of facilities.

(o) BEEABITER
R=ZFE-_=F+=-A=+—H0 BE&EH
$RITIE 495,457,000 T (ZE -4 :
1,071,000 7)1 F1.20% £ 1.50% (=
T4 0.25%%2.50%) RS
BIEEERFRITNRSURAEEET
ENZERREHER - BEERRITERER
Bhim A RIR B ARRR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPBRRMEE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 22 BEeRBEEEYN @)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) RERREZEY
2023 2022
—EBC=HF —F-—
US$’000 Us$'000
FErx F=rx
Bank balances and cash on hand RITHEBR R FHEES 53,478 24,915
Term deposits with original maturity date  [RER =1 A R E| 8 2 E8FR
less than three months 19,888 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZEY 73,366 24,915
Cash and cash equivalents carry interest at market rates BNTATHSFMNEGFEZRERRE
ranging as follows per annum: Z£EY
2023 2022
—EB=HF —F-—
UsS$’000 US$'000
FErx FEx
Bank balances IRITAEER 0.01%-1.80% 0.01%-1.60%
Term deposits EERER 5.00%-5.54% N/A 7~
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents PGSR AEBEEFEEEE I
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies of BRI ESGTENRE KRB SSEY

the relevant group entities at the end of the reporting period REREENT -
are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F -

US$'000 US$'000

FEx SR

usD e 4,720 2,698

CNY AR 142 159

EUR BT - 531

HKD ow 150 132

SGD T 135 30

GBP HeE 4 3

MXN EREIFLR 6 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows
from financing activities.

22 BEeRBEEEEY @)
(c) MEXBEL> SEYE

TRALAESEREXBELZAEE
B BRRENFREED - BEXEKE
Er8ERFEMEIRKEERE © 1§
RAKBGEARSRERTOER/BRER
B2BRENR

Lease liabilities

HEAE
(note 25)
Bt +25
Us$'000
F=rx
At 1 January 2022 R=—Z=-=F—HF—H 20,696
Changes from financing cash flows RMERESTZEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERE 2EARLBD (18,660)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERES 2T BHBD (161)
(18,821)
Other changes Hith & 5
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) F2 5 2 (fsE6(a)) 684
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases R HHEEE 2 HEAEEN 9,920
Increase in lease liabilities arising from reassessment of B E BB A HEENEL
lease term of an existing lease EAMEEAEEM 4,373
Interest element of lease rentals paid for sub-leasing of RO B RREHEEN D HEHF
drilling rigs classified as finance leases (included in EXMBEERS ZF BB
operating activities) GT AL LX) (494)
14,483
Exchanged adjustments E A (169)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_—+=-A=+—H 16,189

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

2. BERBEEEYE)

(c) MEXBEL2EBYURGED

Lease liabilities

HEAE
(note 25)
Mt zE25
UsS$'000
FER
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=%—HA—H 16,189
Changes from financing cash flows RMERERZEH
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENHEERE BRI S (37,644)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERE 2FEEH S (93)
(37,737)
Other changes Hith & 5
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) B> (HE6(a)) 2,538
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases R FHEEE ZHEAEIEN 48,402
Increase in lease liabilities arising from reassessment of B E—IBRAHENHEL
lease term of an existing lease EERHEE A EEN 25,923
Decrease in lease liabilities from early termination of RELKIBEEHEEEZ
existing leases (note 11(e)) HEBERD FEE11e) (1,014)
Interest element of lease rentals paid for sub-leasing of RoEAMEHRENSH
land drilling rigs classified as finance leases (included in Pt B H T AR
operating activities) (note 6(a)) HEHEZFEEH
GEAE &%) (i E6(a) (558)
Interest element of lease rentals paid for leased vessels SN R
(note 6(a)) (included in operating activities) HERSHEIBD GIAKLEE
%) (471 6(a)) (1,887)
73,404
Exchanged adjustments EXAE (13)
At 31 December 2023 REB-=F+=-A=+—H 51,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

R R M EE

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LAZETLZT)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement for

2. BERBEEEYE)

(d) MERSFHME

VN

RenEXTEEHEEESNEEN

FaNG
leases comprise the following: I

2023 2022

—E-=HF -

UsS$’000 Us$'000

FEx F=x

Within operating cash flows (Note) LEH = (MED) 3,024 759

Within financing cash flows MERERE 37,737 18,821

40,761 19,580

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total cash outflow Mizk: BE-_T=_=F+=-A=+—HIHF

for short-term leases amounting to approximately US$579,000
(2022: US$265,000).

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

B ERUEREZRESRAHAENAE
579,000% L (ZZF = =4 : 265,0003%

L) @

23. ES EARAEMENRE

2023 2022
—E=-= T e

US$’000 Us$'000

FEx F=rx

Trade creditors and bills payables B S ENERRENER 34,014 43,683
Consideration payable for acquisition of a Wi TR B (T 52 27)

business (note 27) 754 =

Payable for capital injection FOE A E N B RS 2 B

into associates (note 16) (FF5E16) 9,567 =
Amount due to a non-controlling interest of  fEf— K B A Al IEIERE RS

a subsidiary (note a) I8 (HizEa) 262 =

Other payables and accrued charges L fth A< R IE 2 B 5T 32 15,588 15,893

60,185 59,576

Note a:  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Wta: HBHHELSEAEEWN . @O RARERER

= ©

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

23.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors and bills payables, based on invoice date and bills issuance

date respectively, is as follows:

ESRGREMENTKIEE
RI|EBK - EHEMERRESZES B
REQHREZAMNERSTNT

2023 2022

—E-= ="
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FExT
Within 1 month —EAR 13,408 24,720
More than 1 month but within 3 months BBE—EAER=EAR 7,235 7,412
More than 3 months but within 12 months  BiE=1EAER+_{EA R 9,472 4,968
More than 12 months but within 24 months  #8:@+ —EAER = +@ER A 1,592 1,340
More than 24 months BB =+ ruE A 2,307 5,243
34,014 43,683

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. S EE
Contract liabilities EHEaE
2023 2022
—EC-=fF —TCF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Contract liabilities EHERE

Billings in advance of performance BITEBOIRAER 34,165 29,822

Contract liabilities include advance received for sales of rig

equipment.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract

liabilities recognised are disclosed in note 20.

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31
December 2023 that was included in the contract liability balance
as at 1 January 2023 was approximately US$17,439,000 (2022:

US$11,622,000).

The amount of billings in advance of performance expected to be
recognised as income after more than one year is approximately

US$2,669,000 (2022: US$13,032,000).

As at 31 December 2023, contract liabilities balance included
amount of approximately US$5,845,000 (2022: US$2,242,000)

received from fellow subsidiaries.
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BRHEERENHEEES FERBEREAN

ES
;Koo

HREZNEHEESEATZEN —RMAKIER
RHTEE203% 55 -

FARZZE_=F—A—BHAHAGEEHAR
HE T =+ A=1+—HILEEERDN
W25 £ 584 /517,439,000F T(—E - —
11,622,000 7T) °

TEENBE — FUABERARANEITER
BIRAT A E 25X 52,669,000 T (Z - —
£ : 13,032,000 L) °

R_E-_=ZF+_A=+—8 " 0B ELER
BIEE WE RH B R R FIE 5,845,000 T
(ZZE =% :2,242,000FE7T) °



25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LAZETLZT)

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

25. HEAE

R-Z-_=ZF+-_A=+—H HEEBGBEXK

W

2023 2022

—E-= e o
US$’000 UsS$'000
FEx F=T
Within 1 year 15 R 29,707 14,657
After 1 year but within 2 years 1224 17,361 913
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E55F 4,775 614
Over 5 years S5 LA E - 5
22,136 1,532
51,843 16,189

The incremental borrowing notes applied to lease liabilities range
from 3% to 5.9% (2022: 3% to 7.3%).

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax asset (liabilities),
after set off certain deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities
of the same taxable entity, for financial reporting purposes:

HEEBEMAEEREFNENT3I%ES.9%(Z

T4 :3%%E7.3%) °

26. IEFETIE

AT A% HmE B mEHREERAEE
(BUE) (AR TR TR IR & B 1 3518 [F SR %

ERMNEEHBERERR BN

2023 2022
—E-=F =T
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Deferred tax assets RIERIRE = 1,854 1,579

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

26. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

26. EEFIE (&)

T ARAFE RBEFEDBRNEBET
BOEAE (AW RAS

years:
Impairment
losses
on trade
debtors  Write-down  Unrealised
and bills of  profitson lease Right-of- Lease
receivables inventories inventories receivables  useassets liabilities Others Total
5N
BHRER
SEHE HERER
B8 FEEN B BRERYE RRAEEE  HERE B @5t
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 US§'000
i T T T i TEn S T
Deferred tax arising from: RENUTEEMELHE
At 1 January 2022 RZZE--%-A-H 393 664 (120) - - - 7 964
Exchange adjustments B A% (26) (44) 9 - = = ) (62)
Deferred tax crecit (charged) to AR E) R ELHR
profit or loss (note 7(a)) (M 76) 289 414 (60) = = = 3 677
At 31 December 2022 i
and 1 January 2023 TZA=+-Ak
“%-Z%-8-A 656 1,034 (171) - - - 60 1,579
Exchange adjustments e 19 39 (31) - 1 ) @ 3
Deferred tax credit charged) to SAGIRE) B ETHE
profit or loss (note 7(a)) (B 7) 156 (26) 20 (31 (144) 150 103 48
Acquisition of a business (note 27) BB (327) - - - - - - (176) (176)
At 31 December 2023 RZB=E
T-F=1-H 831 1,047 18 (31 (143) 149 (1 1,854

At 31 December 2023, the Group had temporary differences arising
from undistributed profits of subsidiaries of approximately US$351,000
(2022: US$2,084,000). No provision for deferred tax liabilities have
been made as the Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses and other temporary differences of
approximately US$160,301,000 (2022: US$158,306,000) as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the tax losses
and temporary differences can be utilised/reversed will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction. Except for tax loss of the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC of approximately US$42,242,000 (2022:
US$39,456,000) which will expire within five to ten years, the tax
losses do not expire under current tax legislation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

27. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s subsidiary
in Canada namely TSC Canada acquired 100% interest in a
business at a consideration of approximately US$2,628,000 from an
independent third party, which is principally engaged in Industrial
Equipment Business. The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of a business using acquisition method.

Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

27. Wig — B ¥

BE-_Z-_=%F+-_A=+—B81-FE Kx&
ERINEANMHERRTSC CanadalkREL
2,628,000 TR — BB FE = HE—BEY
Z100% %  ZBILFE_HEERETER
HEY - WESBEEFEAKBEAARABEBK
8 -

PR E E R AERAENEE R BN AFE

acquisition

US$'000

FET

Customer relationship BFERBR 763
Property, plant and equipment W - BB RFE 83
Inventories FE 1,212
Trade receivables FEULBR FX 1,316
Other receivables and prepayments M FE R IE M FE A /IR 1
Trade payables B SRR (960)
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBAE (176)
2,239

FriBE FEUR B (X BB IEE 5 M YR 70) AUk
EHEBRNAFELAE1,316,000% T * EHAKLE
SREE -

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade
receivables) with a fair value of approximately US$1,316,000 at the
date of acquisition which is approximate to its gross contractual
amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

27. ACQUISITION OF A BUSINESS (continued)

27. W —THEB =

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEEELENHE
Us$'000
Fx=rx
Consideration RE 2,628
Less: recognised amounts of net assets acquired W T FEENLCERERE (2,239)
Goodwill arising on acquisition FE Wi F IR E AR 389

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a business

B BAREMEENBES TR -

WA RN FE

Us$'000

F=rx

Cash and cash equivalents acquired WER S KBS EED =
Consideration RE (2,628)

Less: Consideration payable (Note) W ERRECE GEABSE

(included in trade and other payables) 15 B E M FE A 30IR) 754
(1,874)
Note: The consideration payable will be settled by June 2024, The aforesaid Mzt BRNREER S -_WFESAREN - bt

balance with unsecured and carry a fixed interest of 8% per annum
and interest expenses amounting to US$30,000 incurred during the
year ended 31 December 2023 has been settled before the end of
reporting period.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Included in the profit for the year was a profit of approximately
US$247,000 attributable to the additional business generated
by Industrial Equipment Business. Revenue for the year includes
approximately US$2,097,000 generated from the Industrial
Equipment Business.

Had the acquisition of Industrial Equipment Business been
completed on 1 January 2023 , revenue for the year and profit
for the year of the Group would have been approximately
US$182,072,000 and US$9,658,000 respectively. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2023, nor is it intended to be a projection
of future results.
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WBEEHAEEEENTE
FRBHNBIELESEEREENBINELE
1% 7 49247,000E 7T - FRIPABRIETHER
TS E £ /492,097,000 7T °

M TEREESRER T _=F—HF—H
TR AEBEFARA RSB E
182,072,000 7t % 9,658,0003% 7t » 5 &£
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

28. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by the municipal and provincial governments for its
employees in the Mainland China. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans at rates ranging from 20% to
25% of the eligible employees’ salaries.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s contributions under the above-mentioned defined
contribution retirement plan are expensed as incurred and no
contributions have been forfeited as all contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for all qualifying employees in jurisdictions other than the
Mainland China and Hong Kong with contributions to the schemes
at 3% — 10% of the gross salaries.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment of the
employees’ retirement and other post-retirement benefits other
than the contributions described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no
forfeited contributions which were used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

28. EERIKER

REBFBENSE TER  AEE2RZEHET
BT 4% B A B {8 B AR A 60 T RE R ORIRGET
g  AEEARAEREEFEH20%E25%
A% B R IRETEIVE K

AEBTREER RGBS GO RIE
BEEAERRBEIEANEERTAFNEATES
AEI((RESRE)) - BESFE/BBEIUE
AAEENERHIENRGE - ERIEDF
2T RBERHEEEHEAZEEERKA
#5% Mzt IR - LRAEABBKRARN
30,000 7T » A&t EEH M EKENR BN

FAA -

AEER LR EBRHRFGE B TOEKERE
SRR - BBERAARSES T HR
BB SRR - M BT RBOR MK -

AEB T ARPERLREBAIN BEER
MERAERERRAERAMRICRKENG
g MEEAEENHREEAFT S EEN3%

210% °
B B RN - REEY EBEMEENREE
BIRREMBRIRERF -

HE_Z_=—fN_FT_—F+-_A=+—H
IEFE > AEETESFRLUWER AR
BEFKFE -

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(a) Share Award Plans

2015 Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2015 Share
Award Plan”) on 16 January 2015 (the “2015 Plan Adoption
Date”). The remuneration committee of the Company may,
in its absolute discretion, make an award to any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group (excluding any
directors and any core connected persons of the Company) (the
“2015 Plan Eligible Persons”).

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
that may be purchased and held by the trustee of the 2015
Share Award Plan in order to satisfy the outstanding awards
from time to time made under the 2015 Share Award Plan
should not exceed 3% of the total issued Shares at the 2015
Plan Adoption Date (i.e. 21,147,456 Shares) (the “2015 Plan
Limit”). The 2015 Plan Limit represents approximately 0.65%
of the total issued Shares as at the date of this report.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of
the 2015 Share Award Plan, the 2015 Share Award Plan will
remain in force for a period commencing on the 2015 Plan
Adoption Date and ending on 15 January 2025.

There was no unvested award granted to the 2015 Plan
Eligible Persons under the 2015 Share Award Plan as at 1
January 2022 and 31 December 2022. No award was granted
under the 2015 Share Award Plan during the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2023. Accordingly, there was (i) no
unvested award granted to the 2015 Plan Eligible Persons
under the 2015 Share Award Plan as at 31 December 2023;
and (i) no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the 2015
Share Award Plan during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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29. R 1D R B
(o) R REE
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%G:?*£¢%@ﬁ@ﬂ%D°$ﬂﬁ
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—REBRNEEEZEABEN
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MEARTRBAIBERBENEAR
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29. RSB s S (&
(b) RSB &8 (%)

29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(a) Share Award Plans (Continued)

2019 Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan (the “2019 Share
Award Plan”) on 31 October 2019 (the “2019 Plan Adoption
Date”). The administration committee (which is delegated with
the power and authority by the Board to administer the 2019
Share Award Plan) may, in its absolute discretion, make an
award to any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Group, including directors, senior management and any other
connected persons of the Company and any consultant of the
Group (the “2019 Plan Eligible Persons”).

The total number of Shares that may be purchased and held
by the trustee of the 2019 Share Award Plan in order to satisfy
the outstanding awards from time to time made under the
2019 Share Award Plan should not exceed 3% of the total
issued Shares on the 2019 Plan Adoption Date (i.e. 88,389,372
Shares) (the “2019 Plan Limit”). The 2019 Plan Limit represents
approximately 2.73% of the total issued Shares as at the date
of this report.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of
the 2019 Share Award Plan, the 2019 Share Award Plan will
remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing on the
2019 Plan Adoption Date and ending on 30 October 2029.

There was no unvested award granted to the 2019 Plan
Eligible Persons under the 2019 Share Award Plan as at 1
January and 31 December 2022. No award was granted under
the 2019 Share Award Plan for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2023. Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award
granted to the 2019 Plan Eligible Persons under the 2019
Share Award Plan as at 31 December 2023; and (ii) no award
vested, cancelled or lapsed under the 2019 Share Award Plan
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Shares held under Share Award Plans

As at 31 December 2023, the Company held 70,499,000
(2022:70,499,000) under these two share award plans and
the total consideration paid for the shares amounting to
approximately US$3,631,000 (2022:US$3,631,000).

—E-NEROEBTE

ARRRZT—NFTA=+—RH((=ZF
— NEFT I B B ) B — IE AR 10 22 D
FAE(ZZF—NFRHEEFED - 1T
ZES(HEFCRBETARERE _T—
NERGEETE) AT 2 EMBERAAELEE
EM{E B (TmEBFEE - 2EARAR
BT SATBEASNEMEMBEAL
AR AREBEIMBER) ([-ZE—AEE
BEBALTIEL 2R -

—E-NERMDERTEZIABEMNR
BT —NERG REET SR M i
RE1T 2 REN A B B B A MR D R8T
FBB=—T—NFrEFMBHEEITR
D #aE 2 3% (EN88,389,372/% A% 19) ([ =
T—NEHEIREE]) - —F—NETEIR
BEHRERAREBPEEITRG AEHRLY
2.73% °

—E-NFROBBFEHE _FT—NF
AEIRMBMERAER  EE-FT N
FHA=THEARL BRHP+F  HARE
—E-NFRipEEFE Z GRIRER
1k e

HEZZE-—_F—A—8 fIBERE_F
—NEROEBHEE TS —NE:r8
EERATMEAREB ZEE - BHE-T
=== fE =R REE ===
A=+—HIFE  WERE-_T—hF
B 10 B2 T 4% (R 42/ - E it - (V&
E-_T-_=F+-A=+—H  HELE
ZE-NFROERFEE TS —NEF
FrEIE BB AT MMAREE 528 K(i)
HEZZ-="F+-A=1T—HLFE "
ZE-NFRH EEE SR L& (42
NEFE - FEEHERM o

BB R EFENRG
R-ZB-=F+=-A=+—A0 ' AAFR
1R MIEAR 7 B2 EDET 84575 70,499,0008%
(ZZT=—4% :70,499,0000%) * FA&MH
MR BRELNA3,631,000ETL (===
£ :3,631,000%7T) °

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)
(b) Share Award Incentive Scheme

A share award incentive scheme (the “Share Award Incentive
Scheme”) of the Company was adopted by way of ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 27 May 2016 (the “Incentive Scheme Adoption Date”)

The persons eligible to participate in the Share Award Incentive
Scheme are any individual, being any employee (whether full-
time or part-time employee) of any members of the Group or
any affiliate (who is not a connected person of the Company),
officer, consultant or advisor of any member of the Group or
any affiliate (who is not a connected person of the Company)
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Incentive
Scheme Eligible Persons”).

The total number of new Shares underlying all grants made
pursuant to the Share Award Incentive Scheme shall not
exceed 3% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
Incentive Scheme Adoption Date (i.e. 21,213,606 Shares) (the
“Incentive Scheme Limit”). The Incentive Scheme Limit was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2016. The
Incentive Scheme Limit represents approximately 0.65% of the
total issued Shares as at the date of this report.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the
Share Award Incentive Scheme, the Share Award Incentive
Scheme shall be valid and effective for 10 years from the
Incentive Scheme Adoption Date and ending on 26 May 2026.

No award was granted made under the Share Award Incentive
Scheme since its adoption.
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Movements in components of equity

30.

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set

BEXRHE

(0) BBEHD B
REEGFE RSB 2 B R KA
ZHBRHNGEEREDR - KRFEY
REKLZERERBEBFIFEHTI M
anN

out below:
Company ARAF
Share Share Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
& REE ERGE ZitER @t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
5 T TET TEL Txr
At 1 January 2022 R=B--§-A-H 41,418 254,632 151 (167,913) 128,288
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEYGHEE > = . 8,848 8,848
At31December 2022 and 1 January 2023 R=B==F+-f=+-A
k=E-=%-F-H 41,418 254,632 151 (159,065) 137,136
Total comprehensive income for the year EREANGEE - - (98) (47,302) (47,400)
Dividends recognised as distribution BARDRZRE - (4,052) - - (4,052)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=f+-A=+-H 41,418 250,580 53 (206,367) 85,684
(b) Share capital (b) BA
2023 2022
—EB-=HF T
No. of share Amount No. of share Amount
RH#E -] heor ! G|
‘000 US$°000 ‘000 Us$'000
T TER FH& F=r
Authorised: EE
Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each BIREEC AT
I AR 10,000,000 128,730 10,000,000 128,730
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRARMN
and fully paid: EER :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BAk
+=-A=+—H 3,243,434 41,418 3,243,434 41,418

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank

equally with regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

EBBTE AR RKER A E R A B
B YHERNARRNAE LSRN
B—F -MATAERIARANBEEM
EEAREMA -
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

®

(i)

(iii)

@iv)

(%)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the fund in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired as a result of the restructuring exercise in 2004
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 2(v).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess of capital
contribution over the nominal value of the registered
capital of TSC (Qingdao).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, TSC (Qingdao)
was transformed into a company limited by shares. As a
result, its net assets value in excess of share capital was
transferred to capital reserve as a capital contribution.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the fair value
adjustment to the interest previously held by the Group
as an associate upon the acquisition of TSCUK.
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi)

Statutory res~erve funds

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries
require the appropriation of 10% of their profit after
tax each year, based on their statutory audited financial
statements, to the statutory reserve funds until the
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
respective PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve
funds may be capitalised as the paid-in capital of these
subsidiaries.

(vii) Safety fund surplus reserve

Pursuant to a Notice regarding Safety Production
Expenditure jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Work Safety of the PRC,
the Group is required to establish a safety fund surplus
reserve. The safety fund can only be used to offset the
specific reserve as and when they are incurred, including
expenses related to safety protection facilities and
equipment improvement and maintenance as well as
safety production inspection, appraisal, consultation and
training.

(viii) Shares held for share award scheme reserve

(x)

The shares held for share award scheme reserve
represents purchase costs of shares held for share award
scheme as disclosed in note 29.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net charge in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period (see note 2(f)).

30. EX R fRE®
(c) BBHMER B 1@

v

(vii)

EERBEARESE
ETHEMNBARANEKEZMA
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30. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

30. EXR KRB @)

(d) Dividend (d) R
2023 2022
—E-=HF T
Us$'000 US$'000
FEx F=x
Final dividend paid out from the share AR EBIRIKN —ZT — =4

premium account: 2023:HK$0.01 BRARERE : 0.0187T

(2022: Nil) per share (ZZB=——%F : &) 4,052 =

©

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd.

No dividend has been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis and
considers the cost of capital and the associated risks. Based
on recommendations of the board of directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through adjusting the
amount of dividends payable to shareholders, new shares
issues or new debt financing. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position.
The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio, being
the Group's total liabilities to total assets, under 100%. The
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2023 was 46% (2022: 39%).
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

CTREREEREMTIAZAFE
(=
AEBEREBBRIELEE  RABHES -
R REHER - AEBEH L SERRAE
B2 S RERERBE REARIMT -

(o) EMIAESE

2023 2022
—E-= —F_—
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FHET
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BHHEKATEZEREE 170,554 170,401
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BRATEEFAHEMEARZ 2
AR A% & 5,422 281
175,976 170,682
Financial liabilities EA Y=
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B ATECERAE 56,019 53,605

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade debtors and bill receivables,
amount due from its controlling shareholder, amount due
from a joint venture, lease receivables, other receivables and
deposits, pledged bank deposits and bank balances. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

Trade debtors, bills receivables and lease receivables
arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures are
in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 14% (2022:
11%) and 18% (2022: 29%) of the total trade debtors, bill
receivables and lease receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals.

(b) FERREKRETE
EERBREARBENR ZHF 7 ERET
HAWBBEMERAERETMIFEKRN
R - AEENEERREIEREBESE
YRR TR e U SR AR R LA L AR A SR K
I ERAZERARRIE  ERHERE -
H IR kIR - EEARITFERA
N ERITAERR © REBE BB R 5
FEMEEERERARMBELSHEE
HENEERR -

BEFEHNELEZESZBURN BRRE
R EWHEERIA

REEREEERR  AKBEDHIEEE
BRF - NERRKERRETHKRESHAE
& o

AEENEERRET  REAEFHER
R EREERRHEERBGEBTEN14%
TEZF 11%)R18%(ZE ==
F:29%) DRl RERAEESZATR K
AARF - AREREEERR - A5E
EEECEZREFEBREEEERERE
=¢=%i A
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Trade debtors, bills receivables and lease receivables
arising from contracts with customers (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model by, which is calculated using a provision
matrix or based on the probability of default with reference to
available market information, taking into account any credit
enhancement. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
indicates different loss patterns for different customer
geographical segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

Amount due from its controlling shareholder

For amount due from its controlling shareholder namely
CM Industry, the management makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of amount due from its
controlling shareholder based on the financial position of
CM Industry, and also considering various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information, as appropriate,
in estimating the probability of default from its controlling
shareholder. The management believes that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group assessed the ECL for amount due from its controlling
shareholder is insignificant and thus no loss allowance is
recognised.

As at 31 December 2023, in determining the expected credit
losses for amounts due from its controlling shareholder,
the directors of the Company have taken into account the
financial position of CM Industry, and also considering various
external sources of actual and forecast economic information,
as appropriate, in estimating the probability of default from its
controlling shareholder. During the year ended 31 December
2023, no impairment allowance was provided for amounts
due from its controlling shareholder as the loss amount is
insignificant.

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for pledged bank deposits
and bank balances by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on
pledged bank deposits and bank balances is considered to be
insignificant and therefore no loss allowance was recognised.

CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. + Annual Report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

3. sRERMEEREMIAEZAEE
=1C-)
(b) EEREME KRR ETE @

BEFENEECEZRUEN  BRRE
REWHEREGE)

AN - AEBERBEMEEBBENET
ERHE - ENERBEEERESER

FmSEMRBENMREETE  AEE
EREEARE - HRAKEREEEER
BEBREAATREFLEDS BEETRE
BERX - ERNEHRENEIERER A E
BrREFER ZEE—FRD

FEREFERIRRHIE
%%Wﬁ%hh%@ﬁﬁﬁgﬂ XA M
5 ERERBEREIENTBANE S
B8 98 3 1 7B Ui L 4% v B R R IR Y AT YR [
- TRRMEET R RR OB
BERRBERKEE RS RINDRR
(EE)  ERERRBENRERLEZE
THENEESRLARBEREN - AAKE
RIR128 A B EEBBRFHRRERE -
BE_T_="F+_A=t—"HLFE"
A& E A AL A A R SRIB O TR ERME
EEBINEX - R ARHEREERE -

i e e 2y e S fe e S
WE%&&%MEME%F%EEM ZN
ARIEZEEERBIENIBMR - 78
REFFEERBRRENOITREREEE
% e BRI AR 7 B R B B RO ER SROR (1R 8
B) - BE_T_=F+_A=t+—HI
FE - AREESBATEKR - SAER
FENS I B B R R IB AT SRR B R A

EEFIRITIZH,RITHE
BRXZHFHRBEREERBERTRE
SRR EERIFNRT  DERRTHE
RAERITEHNEERRAR - AREL
S2ENBEEFSERBLAMNEREE
REFHBOREENBIENESR - 7F
HEEMBITERRRITAERN12ME A
ﬁ%ﬁ%%%°ﬁﬁ¥ﬂ%%i’ﬂﬁﬁ

TERRRITEGBN12EABHREEES
EWWEITEK PR L I 2 e R S 1R K
=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

3. emEREEREMI A2 AFE
B
(b) EEABRRETE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Trade debtors, bills receivables and lease receivables
arising from contracts with customers (Continued)
Ofther receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on
12m ECL. For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group assessed the ECL for other receivables and deposits
are insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

EFANELECEZREWERR  EREE
REKWRASEREE)
BEMERHIBREE
REMERZERZEME @ EEERE
BAEERDE  BALHRIAREERFE
BXEMAEETEREEER  EHY
HL fth B USRI % 3% <6 9 AT e [B] 14 2 17 1 )
Fih o BEERE  BYIRERNAR @ %
ERERNEERBRIEEZEN - BASE
ERZ 1218 A FEREE BB IRAE - &
BT =FR-F_—_F+-_A=+—
HIEFE @ NEBFGHEAERZIERIE
SHFEHREEBBYTEKX - Rt &
REBEAE -

AEENASREERBFEFEREAT

the following categories: R -
Trade debtors,
Internal bill receivables and Other
credit rating Description lease receivables financial assets
BEZRBER BURER
AMEETRELE  HE HEEWRR HiteMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not have  Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
any material past-due amounts = not credit-impaired
iYEN A RHZHFHENORRE  BUREMEABHATE P HEHEESE REAEBEERR
- REEEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
but usually settle in full = not credit-impaired
R AE EBALERIMARER  ERREHEE LHRBCEEER RMEAEHEEEE
- REECERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since initial ~ Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
recognition through information developed internally or - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
external resources
A BRNBRENENIOMDER  BVRBERUREERRE 2HEHEESE P HEHEESE
BEE - REEEERE - RBEGEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
= credit-impaired - credit-impaired
B BRSKRPBELREERE 2 HRBCEFR 2 HRBCEER
-BEEGERE -BEEGERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off Lifetime ECL
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect - credit-impaired
of recovery
fs8 BEBETNEBARABREN KRS AFSEVEERY  MiFE PHRPEERR
B FIAR AT 82 - BECEHE
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e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. cRiERMEEREMIAE 2 ATE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BH@
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) FERKKRRERNEE)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group'’s TR A EEEETIRAEE RN
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: NEemEENEERRE
Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying Gross carrying Loss  Net carrying
amount  allowance amount amount allowance amount
BEAE FERE RERE BEEE FERE RERE
Internal
Notes  credit rating 12m or lfetime ECL 2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
@R
W APEEIR  2EREEEER Z§C=f CECZE ZBoZE| ZRCDf ZTIZE ZBoCF
US§'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000
i i Tin T3 TEn SET
Financial assets at
amortised cost
REHHATEZ SREE
Trade debtors and 20 Lowrisk (Note 1)  Lifetime ECL 126,020 (60,183) 65,837 138,262 (57,448) 80,814
bills receivables (Collective gssessment)
ARG RENRE EERME) 2HBHEEER
(KT
Amount due from its 20 Lowrisk 12m ECL 16,569 - 16,569 - - -
controlling shareholder
A ERRRE Eak 1EARHESEE
Prepaid on behalf of its fellow 20 Low risk 12m ECL 5,972 - 5972 = = =
subsidiaries .
REERZMBLRENFE E&R ERREEERE
Amount due from 20 Lowrisk 12mECL - - - 60,723 - 60,723
a joint venture ‘
ERAERTR EER LERERESES
Other receivables and deposits 20 Low risk mecl 3353 - 3353 28718 = 28718
HtRUGER RS EEkR NEREREEES
Pledged bank deposits/ 2 Lowrisk 12mECL 78,823 - 78,823 25,986 - 25,986
bank balances
BERSAER/ EEk ARESEEESE
Rttt
Subtotal 20,731 (60,183) 170,554 227,849 (57,448) 170,401
15t
Lease receivables 21 Lowrisk (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 15,581 @ 15,579 15,008 (25) 14,983
HERY EER(GN)  2HRHBEESE
246,318 (60,185) 186,133 242,857 (57473) 185,384
Notes: BEEE
(1)  For trade debtors, bills receivables and lease receivables, 1) HESEKRER BRUKEEKBEESEKZM
the Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 T ASECREABRAMEREEFIHAE
to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group bRk HEREEBETEBHERE - &
determines the expected credit losses on these items by using a SEEARBIRA D ENBREEREEEZS
provision matrix, grouped by past due status. IE B TEBHRE SR -
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mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (35 B &8 - LAZETLZT)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. cRiEMEEREMIAE 2 ATE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE@
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EE R RRER @)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Mzt : (38
(1) (Continued) M (&)
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses ERARBEEERREERN—BH - A%
debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment of trade debtors and B AESANRRTEEFNE SRR
bills receivables and lease receivables from customers because BRI FE W R4 e AR B UK B RUE -
these customers consist of a large number of customers with AREREPRIEAEABHXRARBREEDN
common risk characteristics that are representative of the BF  ZERBRREFPREBESOGTRX
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with NETERIEFIENRE S - TRIEHREER
the contractual terms. The following table provides information SEME FEBEERREREEERAE
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade debtors and ERBOER  ZE5E SRR EK
bills receivables and lease receivables which are assessed on a ERREEERKKTER S BEREEE
collective basis by using provision matrix within lifetime ECL. A B AR R R SR R B GT A ©
Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount  Loss allowance
FiEER REAE EERE
% Us$'000 US$'000
As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-_=f+=-A=+—AH FxEx FErx
Trade debtors and bills receivables B ZEWERRREKRERE
Current (not past due) B (RAEER) 0%-3.2% 37,402 417)
Less than 1 month past due BELR—EA 0.2%-20.1% 3,942 (197)
More than 1 month but within BEBBH—EAED
3 months past due BiE=1EA 0.2%-20.1% 6,984 (160)
More than 3 months but within BEBA=EARAT
12 months past due e+ @A 0.2%-20.1% 8,154 (225)
More than 12 months but within eEBERt+—EAET
24 months past due 838 =+ {E A 5.8%-100% 5,699 (3,025)
More than 24 months past due BERB = +IEA 85%-100% 63,839 (56,159)
126,020 (60,183)
Lease receivable HEEW
Current (not past due) B (REER) 0%-0.07% 15,569 )
Less than 1 month past due BEILR—EA 12 -
15,581 (2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

31.

TREREEREMIAZATE

=10
(b) BERBRRRETME

M - ()

(1) (Continued) 1 (%)
Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
T EER BREEE EIEEE
% US$'000 US$'000
As at 31 December 2022 R=-ZB-=f+=A=+-—H FE F=7
Trade debtors and bills receivables EZZEWRAKEWRZE
Current (not past due) e (REHR) 0%-4.6% 45,216 (172)
Less than 1 month past due #wmE LR —E A 4.5%-37.7% 5,783 (297)
More than 1 month but within BEER—EAET
3 months past due BE=EA 45%-37.7% 3,819 (161)
More than 3 months but within BHBEB=@AET
12 months past due BiEt+—EA 4.5%-37.7% 14,022 (1,476)
More than 12 months but within BB +—EAET
24 months past due Bid=+rEA 10.1%-100% 6,399 (834)
More than 24 months past due BERE =+ HEA 23.8%-100% 63,023 (54,508)
138,262 (57,448)
Lease receivable HEERK
Current (not past due) e (REER) 0%-0.61% 12,984 (25)
Less than 1 month past due BELR—EA 2,024 =
15,008 (25)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group made a recognition
of impairment allowance of approximately US$2,274,000,
net of reversal (2022: reversal of impairment allowance of
US$3,152,000) for trade debtors, bills receivables and lease
receivables based on the provision matrix.
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EHFTEREDEMEE ABRERBANESL
BRENTETHT  AREFNETLED
BRASIEN M A SRR ERETHE - B
BEESRSOE  URRABEEEBAD
HEAER D -

R-T-=F+—"A=+—8  AEERERE
HEEEREIEUER  BRERRASEK
KRR B R 492,274,000 T FORR B E) (=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

mEMBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The following table shows the reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for trade debtors and bills receivables

and lease receivables under the simplified approach.

3. EREAREEREMITAZAFE
=10
(b) BERBRRRETME

TRETEBBLTERE S RBEERR K
YRR A K HH B R W R R Y S 1R

As at 1 January 2022
Impairment losses recognised
Impairment losses reversed
Write-offs

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2022
Impairment losses recognised
Impairment losses reversed
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2023

iy el =

ERERRERR
EREREESR
s

P 5 A2

RZEZZF+=A=1+—H

ERERRERR
EREREESR
P 3 A 2

R=F=_=%+=-RA=1+—"H

EVHIERR o
Trade debtors
and bills Lease
receivables receivables Total
EHRWERTRR
EREE HEEKH @gt
Us$ 000 US$ '000 US$ '000
T=r T=r TEx
61,990 166 62,156
1,059 i 1,059
(4,072) (139) (4,211)
(1,274) - (1,274)
(255) @) (257)
57,448 25 57,473
3,316 - 3,316
(1,019) (23) (1,042)
438 - 438
60,183 2 60,185

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in note 20 respectively.

ERASERE S M EMERFRELDN
EERBREE —FE(CHED BIER T
20-°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and/or adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

3. EREAREEREMIAZATE

=XC)

(c) RBELRR

AEEAERNEECRAQTARREE
2 BREREBR/EEHRERERE
FAENBERZREFRKIEEEHEEB
ETHEEREKFAARSARRESS
HE)  AKRBEZHRRASEMERERD
BEeREBRETEERN - NEREER
RARSHER/IRETESRHBEL
EFHETRHE  NWENEREBHZRBE

TRINTAEERRERARERBFE D
AT ESRBERBEEORUEI
ReRnE(BRREEONXTRN(WEER)
REBEHEHRE ORI RFEOR S
) WRAKBERAEEFRAFEANRT
B

2023 2022
ZB-CE “E--f
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BITRERERHRER BiTHERYRHR SR
Within  More than  More than Carrying | Within ~ Morethan ~ More than Carrying
Tyear 1yearbut  2years amount | Tyear 1yearbut 2 years amount
oron within ~ but within ~ Over5 at31 oron within -~ butwithin -~ Over at31
demand ~ 2years  Syears  years  Total December | demand 2 years Syears  Syears  Total  December
-Eps  -F0L RENAL RE=B |—#r%  —F0E  WENE R+ A
REX B E® 1% St-B | &EX ) LEhA.t:3 =+-H
8% mEM  BFA ML B NEREE | B MER IERM NE &% HEERE
USS'000  US$'000  USS'000 USS'000 USS000  USS'000 | US$'000  US$'000  US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000
Tin B30 it Tin TEn TEn | A TEr TEn TEn TEnr TEn

Tradeandother ~ ZSE( R fh

payables JEfT308 60,215 - - - 6025 60,185 | 59,576 = = - 59576 59576
lease liabilies ~ HEBE 31,566 18,161 4832 - 54559 51,843 | 14,809 977 754 5 16545 16,189
91,781 18,161 4,832 - 114774 112,028 | 74385 977 754 5 76121 75765
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

3. EREAMEEREMIAZATE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's
cash and cash equivalents, and pledged bank deposits.
Deposits issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial derivatives
to hedge against the interest rate risk. The Group’s interest
rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)
below.

®

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
deposits at the end of the reporting period.

H@®
(d) FIEmE

AEBNFERBRFEREEAEERE R
ReFEMARBERRITER - EH
FERIZEENREFEHNEE,FRD 5
HAKERBKRASRENXARRAFE
BENERER AEELERBSBITET
LA M R R - TXOEFIERESE

ETHARENEFE

(i) F=EFHE

TR AEERHERRNRE
RREEEMREERRITERE

M RFE -

2023 2022
—E-=E =4
Effective Effective
interest rate US$'000 interest rate US$'000
BIRA= TEx BB A= FTEr
Fixed rate deposits: EERBE (7N :
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 1.20%-1.50% (5,457) | 0.25%-2.50% (1,071)
Term deposits E BT 5.00%-5.54% (19,888) | N/A TiEfAE =
(25,345) (1,071)
Variable rate deposits: BEEM
Bank balances RITHE 0.01%-1.80% (53,478) | 0.01%-1.60% (24,915)
Total st (78,823) (25,986)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (§:3E5 B &8 - UZETLZT)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase of 100 basis points (2022: 100 basis points)
in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased the Group's profit before taxation
by approximately US$535,000 (2022: US$249,000). A
general decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
would have an opposite effect less than the increase
as certain variable rate balances are subject to effective
interest rates less than 1%, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit before taxation that would
arise assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the impact
on the Group's profit before taxation is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of such
a change interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2022.

(e) Currency risk

®

Forecast transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. Most
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC carried out
production locally with RMB as functional currency while
over 50% of the Group’s revenue was denominated in
United States dollars. At 31 December 2023 and 2022,
no related hedges were made by the Group.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB take
place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign currencies.
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely by
supply and demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE BB E

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (£ 7F5 B &85 + A £ T & R)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 3. EREAREEREMITAZAFE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BE@
(e) Currency risk (Continued) (e) E¥ R )
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) AERHEYERE

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the TERHEIWAEBRBERRZAE
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from BEBANEEEUIIN B ER
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency BREEXEBELEZEKER -
other than the functional currency of the entity to which HEFNEHNTE - EERK S
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts EILEHE - W F 4 B SARD EAfE =
of the exposure are shown in United States dollars, HiR - TEERGINEBRTBHRE
translated using the spot rate at the year end date. BREXNRNEBZS|EM 225 -

Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

Exposure to United States dollars

EnRk
2023 2022
—EZ=H T

US$'000 Us$'000

FEx F=rx

Trade and other receivables B 5 FE W R Ho A FE YR IR 1,199 7,285

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 4,720 2,698

Trade and other payables B P RE M ER F IR (186) (213)
Net exposure arising from recognised DHEREERBEEL Y

assets and liabilities R F 5 5,733 9,770

—To—EER - EHERNEReERAT 281
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

3. EREAREEREMIAZATE

=XC)

(e) EMEK @)
(i) BBREDHF

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit before taxation that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained

TR B AR A R B e o B R
ERRRZIEEXTRZAZEL
RERFTA E bR R AR T
ARER B 2 BT B A N R EE A 2 BB

#eh o

i
constant.
2023 2022
—E-= —Eo—fF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange before exchange before
rates taxation rates taxation
HVISEE R BRBLADRFI SN B 25t A A
#m (L) iR | B CRD) O
US$'000 Us$'000
TEn T=r
United States dollars e 10% 573 10% 977
(10)% (573) (10)% (977)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit before taxation
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into United States dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2022.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

®

9

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities measured at FVTOCI as
disclosed in note 18.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2022: 10%) higher/lower, investment valuation reserve
would increase/decrease by US$542,000 (2022: increase/
decrease by US$28,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of equity investment at FVTOCI.

Estimation of fair values

The fair value of listed equity securities measured at FVTOCI
is grouped into Level 1 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable in accordance to the Group’s accounting
policy. There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 of fair
value hierarchy in the current and prior years.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

3. eREREERESMTAZAFE
=XC))

®

9

ERERE

FIHE18PTINEE - ARBRERENER
FERARMEEKETEZ EHRAE
7 1T H B B A B AR R

BT
AT SREDH TR BER |E R
R A B EREE

fHAHRAR AN TE Z B EF THK10%
(ZEZZF 1 10%) - AE@BZZEGE
FHEEREATFEEF ALME2E RS
ZRAZE N EEES ML I, R

42542 000E T (Z T = =4 : #B0 HL
28,0003 7T) °
AFEEGE

BREAKENGHRE  RAFEEA
Htp2m P mat 80 EMRAREZH QT
EBERATFEEVEREEDAE M -
MAFEIBEEFE R VPEEERNE
—HREF AW EER o

REENEERATENESM T A ZRER
BHEEEN T _=FR-_T-_"F+=
A=+—RAZAFEBEITEEAER -

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¢ 7F5 55485 + AT & R)

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS . EXREBHBALRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in MRZERBRREMBOMBENR S REH
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following G AEEEIM AT EBBALRS -

related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (o) TEEBAEME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, TRHEJAEEETEEREASHE - BF
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as XA TSP BRI AR B E F KT EE9
disclosed in note 8 and all of the highest paid employees as FIEBEOME R EEMN S

disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-_—
UsS$'000 Us$:000
FEx FEr
Salaries and other emoluments FeREMME 1,623 1,750
Equity-settled share-based payment LARE s 45 B DARR 0 B B 2 5Kk - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH K 53 11
1,676 1,761
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)). Bl 42 g8 5T A& B AN (R HIEE6(D)) ©
(b) Transactions with related companies (b) EEB AR RS
Except disclose elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRirE T BHRERAEMBTREIN - AEE
statements, the Group entered into the following related party BRZAKMB ARG AT HEBE A LR
transactions with fellow subsidiaries: 2
2023 2022
—EZ=F T
US$'000 US$'000
FErx FEx
Sales of equipment and packages RKEREDHE 69,920 28,005
Purchase of materials FREE VDR - 3,914
Service expenses AR5 7 157 32
Lease rentals paid 2NHEE 15,267 838
Management service income EEREUA 7,009 310

284  CM Energy Tech Co., Ltd. « Annual Report 2023
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33. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 33. R AR AR R &

POSITION
2023 2022
—E-=F =
NOTE UsS$'000 Us$'000
ihg=s FEx FEx
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB &R 103 28
Intangible assets EmREE 161 164
Interests in subsidiaries S VNGIP - E 5,486 5,486
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL /B A 7] ZIE 127,354 132,860
133,104 138,538
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments Eh e RIE - B REES
and deposits 434 106
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEED 569 1,747
1,003 1,853
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accrued charges Lt < F0I8 K fEAH 7 =2 1,926 1,826
Lease liabilities HESE 59 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASHHT B A R FUA 46,397 1,429
48,382 3,255
Net current liabilities RBEEREE (47,379) (1,402)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEGBE 41 =
NET ASSETS HEFE 85,684 137,136
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR G 30(a)
Share capital A& 41,418 41,418
Reserves ] 44,266 95,718
TOTAL EQUITY AR 85,684 137,136
34. COMMITMENTS 34. EiE
31/12/2023 31/12/2022
—ZE=-= -
+=ZA=+—-8B | +=—A=+—H
US$°000 US$'000
FEx FEx
Capital expenditure in respect of R E P BHREPERTL
setting up associates contracted BRFHREE R
for but not provided in the o l/NC = iNE B3
consolidated financial statements - 2,868

TR CCFFR c ZEREENRROERAA
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Director

Mr. Zhan Huafeng (Executive President) (appointed as a non-executive

Director on 24 March 2023 and re-designated to an executive
Director on 29 August 2023)
Mr. Yu Zhiliang (Chairman) (resigned on 29 August 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Xianzhi (Chairman) (appointed as the Chairman
of the Board on 29 August 2023)

Mr. Liu Jiancheng

Mr. Tam Wing Tim (Vice President) (appointed on 29 August 2023)

Ms. Fu Rui (resigned on 23 November 2023)

Mr. Zhang Xizheng (appointed on 23 November 2023)

Mr. Wang Jianzhong

Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan (re-designated to a non-executive
Director on 24 March 2023)

Mr. Jiang Bing Hua (re-designated to a non-executive Director
and resigned as the CEO on 24 March 2023, and resigned as
a non-executive director on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Huang Jin (resigned on 24 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny

Mr. Zou Zhendong

Mr. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Sun Dongchang (resigned on 23 November 2023)
Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Xie Shaohua

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Koo Ching Fan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Mei Xianzhi
Mr. Zhan Huafeng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (Chairman)

Mr. Zou Zhendong

Mr. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024)
Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zou Zhendong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhan Huafeng (appointed on 24 March 2023)
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny

Mr. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Yu Zhiliang (resigned on 29 August 2023)

Mr. Jiang Bing Hua (resigned on 24 March 2023)
Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Mei Xianzhi (Chairman) (appointed on 29
August 2023)
Mr. Zhan Huafeng (appointed on 29 August 2023)
Mr. Zhang Menggui, Morgan (resigned on 29 August 2023)
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
Mr. Zou Zhendong
Mr. Chen Weidong (resigned on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Yu Zhiliang (Chairman) (resigned on 29 August 2023)
Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)
Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)

=

=

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (DISSOLVED ON 23
JANUARY 2024)

Mr. Zhan Huafeng (Chairman) (appointed on 29 August 2023 and
ceased on 23 January 2024)

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (ceased on 23 January 2024)

Mr. Chen Weidong (ceased on 23 January 2024)

Mr. Yu Zhiliang (Chairman) (resigned on 29 August 2023)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhan Huafeng (Chairman) (appointed on 23 January 2024)
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (appointed on 23 January 2024)
Mr. Zou Zhendong (appointed on 23 January 2024)

Ms. Zhang Zhen (appointed on 22 March 2024)

Mr. Xue Jianzhong (appointed on 22 March 2024)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1=1111
Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

3rd Floor, Office Building

1-7 Sai Tso Wan Road,

Tsing Yi Island, New Territories,
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1=1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING AND DATE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
28 November 2005

PUBLIC AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company

Email: ir@cm-energy.com
Phone: +852 3919 6309
Fax: +852 2857 3381

TOTAL NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES
3,243,433,914 shares as at 31 December 2023

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, Public Interest Entity Auditor registered
in accordance with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council
Ordinance

WEBSITE

WWWw.Cm-energy.com

STOCK CODE
206
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